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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Directors present their Strategic Report on the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Highlights
Andina Plc (‘Andina” or the Company” and with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is a Latin American energy group.

Key financial results incorporating the results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

• Revenue US$189.3 million (2019: US$246.3 million)
• Operating loss US$9 million (2019: US$2.7 million)

Business review
The Group’s principal activity is electricity generation and distribution in the regulated public sector in Argentina. Its
principal assets are a 51% indirect controlling interest in Empresa Distribuidora de Electricidad de Mendoza S. A.
(“EDEMSA”), the main electricity distribution company in the province of Mendoza, and a 47% indirect controlling
interest in Hidroeléctrica Ameghino S. A. (“HASA’). a 60MW hydroelectric power plant in the province of Chubut. This
indirect controlling interest in HASA has been reduced from 47% to 23.6% post 31 December 2020 in February 2021
(refer to Note 32 for more details).

Revenue for the Group for the year decreased from US$246.3 million in 2019 to US$189.3 million in 2320. Revenue
from operating activities decreased by 23% due to the reduction in the volume of electricity distribution and the
devaluation of the Argentine peso rAR$) against the US dollar (U5$”) (see note 1.21 for details of changes in
exchange rates). The distribution business represents 98% of the Group’s revenue and the electricity generating
business represents the remaining 2%.

The Group’s total assets have decreased from US$3291 million at the end of 2019 to US$327.4 million at the end of
2020 due to the devaluation of the Argentine peso CARS”) against the US dollar CU$$”) (see note 1.21 for details of
changes in exchange rates).

Total current liabilities increased from US$1833 million at the end of2Olg to US$208.3 million at the end of 2020, At
the year-end, the Group had cash resources of US$10.2 million compared to US$7.9 miilion at the end of 2019.

Borrowings, excluding leases, have decreased from US$16.7 million at the end of 2019 to USS5.8 million at the end
of 2020 mainly a result of an agreement being signed in November 2020 whereby certain outstanding debts of Andina
and Andes Electricidad S.A. were converted, including interest, into equity shares of the Company equivalent to USS
10.7 million (See note 19 to more details). Current borrowings, excluding leases, decreased from US$7.9 million at
the end of 2019 to US$2.9 million at the end of 2020 and non-current borrowings, excluding leases, decreased from
US$8.9 million at the end of 2019 to US$2.9 million at the end of 2020.

Operating and financial review
Due to the continuous significant devaluation of the ARS, the financial review has been prepared in both AR$ and USS
to facilitate a better understanding of the underlying business performance,

EDEMSA

Financial review
In 2020 EDEMSA reported a post-tax loss of Us$20.9 million (AR$1,748.l million - loss) compared with US$20.4
million loss in 2019 (AR$l,658.4 million - loss)

Saes for the year have shown a decline of 20.7% in real terms mainly because the Distribution Value Added (VAD)
was frozen for the whole year. Inflation continued to erode EDEMSA’s margins. Even though EDEMSA managed to
keep its operating cost increases in ARS below inflat!on, gross margin in real terms has declined from US$30.4 million
in 2019 (AR$2,471 million) to US$24.6 million in 2020 (AR$2,054 million) and operating loss has decreased from
US$5.5 million in 201g (AR$331 million - loss) to US$9 million in 2020 (AR$790 million - loss).This situation put
pressure on its working capital position forcing delays of certain payments to its main electricity provider CAMMESA.

Financial income results are mainly due to the restatement of the financial statements in terms of the irrent unit of
measure at the date of the balance sheet. Financial costs mainly result from interest on the outstanding debt with
CAMMESA.



ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Tariff update
The VAD is the amount of Income Required annually for the distributor to carry out the technical and commercial
operation in its concession area! through efficient rnanagenient and to ensure the long-term financial sustainability of
the distributor!

The 5th tariff review commenced on 8 February 2017 by the Ente Provincial Regulador Electrico rEPRE”) covering a
period from 1 August 2018 o 31 July 2023. Following a public hearing on 3 July 2018 new tariffs were enforced on I
August 2018. The new tariff tables were the same as those previously in force and did not reflect the significant cost
increases of the electricity providers. Consequently, EDEMSA appealed this new tariff and is currently awaiting the
resolution of this appeal.

On 19 October 2018, EDEMSA submitted a request to EPRE for a review of the VAD portion of the existing tariff. The
EPRE called for a public hearing in order to consider EDEMSA’s request. Following the public hearing! a new tariff
scheme was enforced from 4 July 2019 reflecting the favorable resutts of the public hearing.

On 8 January 2020 and on 28 July 2020, EDEMSA submitted 2 requests to EPRE for a recurring six-monthly review
of the electricity distribution companies! VAD according to the procedures established under the previously published
Decree 48117. Following a public hearing on 26 February 2020 and another on 11 December 2020. Decree 08/21 was
published instructing EPRE to put into effect a new tariff scheme effective as of 6 January 2021.

On 29 January 2021, EDEMSA submitted a request to EPRE for a recurring six-monthly review of the electricity
distribution companies’ VAD according to the procedures established under the previously published Decree 48117.
Following a public hearing on 30 June 2021, Decree 1430/21 was published instructing EPRE to put into effect the
adjustment VAD procedure scheme effective as of 20 September 2021.

On 29 July 2021, EDEMSA submitted a request to EPRE for a recurring semi-annual review under Decree 48117.
Following a public hearing on 18 November 2021, Decree 25/22 was published instructing EPRE to put into effect a
new tariff scheme effective as of 13 January 2022.

-On 27 January 2022, EDEMSA submitted a request to EPRE for a recurring semi-annual review under Decree 48117,
on 15 March 2022, EPRE Resolution No. 61/21 calling for a public hearing for 13 April 2022 was notified, which was
held as planned.

tn the inflationary context in which the Argentinian companies are operating, to the extent that the biannual tariff rate
adjustment is granted according to current regulations, EDEMSA’s economic and financial situation will significantly
improve, as well as the value of the business. This will have a highly positive impact on the Group’s financial situation.
Settlement of CAMMESA’S historic debt
During 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESA’s historic debt incurred prior to January
2016, which included a reducticn in late charges, a grace period from I February 2016 to April2018, a financing term
of 90 months from April 2018 until September 2025 and a fixed annual interest rate of 10%. At 31 December 2020
EDEMSA ow-ed CAMMESA USS 22.1 million (ARS 1.9 billion) under this payment plan. The agreement is being fulfilled
and there were no unpaid instalments at the reporting date. No fcrmal additional payment request has been received
as of the date of this report considering the overdue current debt with CAMMESA mentIoned below.

Settlement of CAMMESA’S historic debt under Article 15
Notwithstanding the payment plan for CAMMESAs historic debt, noted above, on 21 December 2016, Law 27.341
was published (2017 National Budget). Article 15 of this law established the compensation terms for the historic debt
which Argentine electricity distributors have with CAMMESA in relation to the purchase of energy between 2013 and2016 (a time during which electricity tariffs were frozen). Under this law, a company should be able to net off thedifferences in income received by the distributors compared v,ith the income to with they were entitle to if theconcession contract had been applied (the Foregone Income) with regard to the amount payable to CAMMESA. On
the basis that EDEMSA’s Foregone Income would be higher than the liability owed to CAMMESA, the application of
the law should result in a full discharge of the outstanding liability.

Although EDEMSA has agreed a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 period, EDEMSA has notrelinquished its right to claim the Article 15 credit. Subsequently, the company has filed a claim with the National
Secretary of Energy to request the application of Article 15. No response has been received regarding this claim as ofthe date of issuance of these financial statements.

Settlement of CAMMESA’s current debt
As at 31 December 2020 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA USS126.4 million (ARS 10.6 billion) for energy purchases, ofwhich US$116 million (ARS 9.7 billion) is due immediately. EDEMSA is currently in the process of negotiating apayment plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is reflective of the tough economic landscape in which EDEMSA operates.

-9-



STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Settlement of CAMMESA’s current debt (Continued)
While the negotiations are ongoing, the outstanding debt continues to be payable on demand. After a formal payment
request made by CAMMESA on January 2020, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed the suspension of procedural
deadlines while negotiations are ongoing under Law 27591, Article 87.

On 14 December 2020 Lay, 27591 was published (2021 National Budget) Article 87 of this law instructs the National
Secretary of Energy to regularize the debts and credits with distributors. The measures contemplate different
alternatives, that include the negotiation of a payment plan for up to 60 months with a 6-month grace period and a
50% reduction in the interest rate. Likewise, the Ministry of Energy is empowered to dictate the applicable regulations
and determine, apply and recognize in the fiscal year 2021 the credit recognized by Article 15 of the law 27,341 (the
Foregone Income). These measures were regulated by the Ministry of Energy in accordance with Resolution 40/2021
dated 21 January 2021. EOEMSA has presented the information requested.

Although to date the parties have not yetfinalized the agreements under Article 87, Law 27591, EDEMSA is negotiating
with the intention of signing them. To this end, EDEMSA has paid CAMMESA in full for all invoices relating to the
purchase of energy since March 2021. If EDEMSA were able to finalize the agreements with CAMMESA, it would
allow EDEMSA to regularize the situation with its main supplier and stabilize its economic and financial situation,
thereby improving the financial position of the Group and benefiting the going concern status making the Group to
continue operating as a going concern. For further information around the implications of the status of these
negotiations, please refer to the Going Concern disclosure in the Directors’ Report and Note 1 to the financial
statements.

Operating review
During 2020, ongoing focus on productivity and process efficiency continued. Despite the hyperinflationary
environment, the tariff freeze and the Covid-19 pandemic that caused lower energy demand as well as delays on
collections, the company has maintained its operations through strict cost control and operational efficiency.

In 2020, EDEMSA continued to migrate from printed billing to electronic invoicing and incorporated new payment
channels and virtual customer management through its website.

During 2020, EDEMSA’s electricity demand decreased by 6.5% compared to 2019 and the annual level of energy
losses including technical and commercial losses reached 10.49%.

The historic trend in energy losses suffered by EDEMSA is as follows:
December2017: 12.66%.
December2018: 14.09%.
December2019: 14.75%,

The increase in energy losses was primarily due to a decrease in the demand from large industries (which historically
have lower energy losses) due to the pandemic restrictions.

HASA
Financial review
The company recorded a toss after tax for the year of USS 0.5 million (ARS 38.8 million) compared to the 2019 profit
after tax of US$ 1.9 million (AR$235.7 million). Sales in real terms decreased amounting to US$ 3.6 million in 2020
(AR$ 297.3 million) compared to US$ 6.3 million in 2019 (AR$ 507,3 million). The power generated in 2020 was 110
GWh, a 11.47% increase compared to the 99 GWh generated in 2019. The decrease in total revenue was mainly
because as of February 1,2020, the National Secretary of Energy passed Resolution 31/2020 with a new payment
scheme for power generation companies resulting in a change in the tariff payment currency from USS to AR$.

On May 19,2021, the Ministry of Energy of the Nation approved Resolution 440-2021 with a new remuneration scheme
for energy generating companies to replace resolution 031-2020 (valid during 2020). The main modifications are:
-An increase in the price of base energy, generated energy, and operated energy by 29%.
-It annulled the price update that was established in Resolution 031/20.
Resolution 440/2021 in article 4, gives companies the choice to adhere to the Resolution. On 10 June2021, the
Company decided to approve their adoption of resolution 440/21.

Operating review
Water supply during the year was 1,306.1 hm3 compared to 973.1 hm3 in 2019. The total energy produced during the
year was sold in the spot market. Collections on billings to CAMMESA remained constant at 50 days, the same level
as 2019.

Water level
The reservoir water level is an indication of the amount of power that can be generated. The water level at the end of
2020 was 152.83 meters compared to 153.58 meters at the end of 2019.



STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2020

ANDINA GROUP

Key performance indicators
tie Direuluis use .1 range of perforrnonno indicators 10 mGIiitOr precress in Inc delivery of the Group’s strategic

objectives, to assess actual performance against targets and to aid manngement of the business They consider the

tollowir’.g relevant Key perfolmdrice indioators in assessing performance

Re V C n tie

S&es provide a measure ci the Groups activity that is influenced by the demand or eectnctiy the amount at electrIC.W

generated and energy prices. Revenue decreased horn US$246.3 rr.ill,or. fARS19,545 mitlan) In 2019 to US$189.3

milltcn (ARS1 5,824 million) fl 2020.

Gross margin

flits represents the margin generated by the core business and excludes alt non-operating costs. Such as f:nancing

end tax expenses as welt as any one-ott items Gross rilergin in USS ncressed to 136% in 2020 from 13.5% in 201B.

Covid-19

During 2020. the Company’s and the Group’s operations were impacted by ttio Covid-lY pandemic. Operations and

investment plans slowed down, customer nolections were delayed, and costs Increased.

Although he future of the pandemic remade utikIrowli, at the date of Ihia report. ha situation is stanhtiand. and

management do not expects s.gnifcant tu.-tner impacL

Future developments
Vie i.niuedhatre Iccus of nrenagemeor 5 on scouring tiriti roveews that wilt C.lsure the Icrig-term stislainabitity of the
business and continued triveshnents in gitrastructure.

Management is working with the regulatory authorities In order to implement Article 87 oF Law 27,591 and Article IS
of Law 27,341 which ara another primary Incus fnm the torihcomin yea.-, The implementation of ihe referred artides is
expected to allow EDEMSA to strengthen its financial sitnat,nn.

Thecompanycontinues to locus on increasing its investments in the distribution at electricity in Argentina as reflected
in its acquietion at shares in FOENOR. see mare details in note 32,

Streamlined Energy arid Carbon roporting
The Company has nn physical operations and cc employees. EiectrLcity arc gas consumption are below 40,000
kwh annually. Accordingly itis riot required mu provide SEOR d4closures.

Subsequent events
InFormation abcut subsequent events is presented in note 32.

Principal risks and uncertainties
ohm-nation about the Groups an the Companys principal risks and uncertainties is piesented on pages 5-6.

$172 Statement
Slfl Statement is presented on pages 7-5,

By orde, of the board

Jorge Rowfibiu
Chairman
26Wsy2Q
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ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Set out below are the key operating risks and uncertainties affecting the Group.

Margin risk
The revenues of the Group’s principal trading subsidiaries EDEMSA and -IASA, are subject to a regulated electricity
tariff regime set by the provincial Government, which is revised on a specified periodic basis. This directly impacts the
Group’s profitability and its ability to fund its operating costs and capital expenditure requirements. Tariffs applicable
for the year under review were insufficient to maintain economic and financial sustainability and the delay in the
implementation of tariffs for the fifth review period means the Group is financially exposed. This remains a key risk as
continuing delays or shortfalls in tariff increases could put the Group into financial difficulties.

Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by monitoring price fluctuations of its key operating costs and by taking actions
to minimize the impact on financial performance through various hedging strategies detailed in note 26. The Group
engages in regular presentations and negotiations with the regulator to support the need for inflation and tariff
adjustments and a resolution to the ongoing tariff disputes.

Economic vulnerability and hyperinflation
The Argentine economy has experienced significant volatility in recent decades, characterized by periods of low or
negative growth, high levels of inflation and significant depreciation of the Argentine Peso, which is the functional
currency of the Groups Argentine operations. In the last 4 years, the Argentine Peso has experienced a rapid
depreciation against the U.S. dollar and other major foreign currencies and as of 1 July 2018 it qualifies as a currency
of a hyperinflationary economy. Rising costs and frozen tariffs are having serious adverse effects on the Group’s
profitability, production expenditure, infrastructure investment and ability to service foreign currency debts.

Since September 2019, the Argentine Government has adopted a series of measures reinstating foreign exchange
controls that limit the Group’s ability to access the foreign exchange market and external financing. Through 2020,
high inflation levels and the Peso’s depreciation remained. These factors pose significant risks to the Group’s liquidity
and ability to access credit and capital markets.

Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate this risk through the strategic acquisition of financial instruments denominated in foreign
currency (US dollar) as well as the advance acquisition of inventory to fix their prices.

Political and regulatory interventions
The Group’s operations are based in Argentina and are subject to Argentine laws and regulations. The Argentine
Government has historically exercised significant influence over the economy promulgating numerous, far- reaching
regulations and reforms affecting the economy and electricity companies in particular. Amendments to laws and
regulations governing the Group’s operating activities or more stringent implementation or interpretation of these laws
and regulations could have a material adverse impact on the Group.

Mitigation
The Group utilizes reputable legal representatives in Argentina to continuously monitor the legal and regulatory regime.
Periodic meetings are held with Argentine tax advisers to review fiscal changes and regulatory requirements. The
updates are typically undertaken on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group is a member of ADEERA (Asociacion de
Distribuidores de Energia Eléctrica de Ia RepUbtica Argentina) which consistently works with the Argentine authorities
to assist in the understanding of regulatory constraints and in the modification of legislation designed to clarity
inconsistencies and interpretations of the law.



ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Plant operating risks (Continued)
The failure of an essential component in any of the Group’s operating assets will impact the Group’s ability to distribute
and generate electricity through plant outages or restrictions on operations. The Group’s assets have been in service
for a substantial amount of time and aging is a significant factor in many areas. A significant plant component failure
orfailure ora critical non-replaceable plant item may affect the operating lifetime of the station.

Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by having a risk-based plant maintenance and replacement program which,
in addition, is also monitored by the EPRE.

Business disruption due to Covid-IS
The current situation surrounding the Covid-19 global pandemic represents significant uncertainty for the Group, the
industry it operates in and the local and global economy. Even though at the date of this report the situation is stable,
the future of the pandemic remains unknown.

Mitigation
The Group seeks to mitigate these risks by implementing effective measures to ensure the safety of employees and
contractors including among others, following Government’s guidelines, communicating precautionary measures to
prevent the spread of the virus to all staff, enabling home-office working and implementing a business continuity
strategy.



ANDINA PLC

STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

8172 STATEMENT

The Directors are required to explain how they consider the interests of key stakeholders and the broad matters set
out in section 172(1) (A) to (F) of the Companies Act 2006 (8172’) when performing their duty to promote the
success of the Company and the Group under 8172. This includes considering the interest of other stakeholders
which will have an impact on the tong-term success of the Company and the Group,

This 8172 statement explains who the Company’s and the Group’s stakeholders’ groups are, their material issues
and how the Directors of Andina relate to them and their expectations, including the principal decisions made by the
Company and the Group during the financial year. The Si 72 statement focuses on matters of strategic importance to
Andina, and the level of information disclosed is consistent with the size and the complexity of the business.

When making decisions, each Director ensures that he/she acts in the way he/she considers, in good faith, would
most likely promote the Company’s and the Group’s success for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing
so have regard (among other matters) to:

S172(1) (A) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term
The Directors understand Andina’s business and the evolving environment in which it operates, including the
challenges of navigating through the political decisions taken by the Argentine Government resulting in continuous
changes to business rules. The Directors recognize how Andina’s operations, particularly in Argentina, are viewed by
different parts of society and that some decisions they take today may not align with all stakeholders’ interests.

As a consequence of the financial debts assumed by the Group in Argentina, an agreement was signed in November
2020 to convert a significant portion of the outstanding debt and the accrued interest into equity shares of the Company
to preserve the Group’s operating cash flows for the next 20 months,

During 2021 the company increased its investments in the distribution of electricity in Argentina through the acquisition
of shares in EDENOR, see more details in note 32.

172(1) (8) The interests of Andina’s employees
Andina’s employees are core to the business and fundamental to its operational success. Significant efforts are being
made to ensure that Andina remains a responsible employer when it comes to payroll, benefits, health, safety and a
positive working environment,

During 2020 due to Covid-ig, taking care of employees’ health was a priority and additional health measures were
taken such as preventive care and vaccination campaigns, delivery of personal care elements, readjustment of
cleaning and disinfection procedures and implementation of home-office working.

The Group invests in its employees through:

strict health and safety monitoring;
• technical and soft skills training;
• scholarship plans;
• communication apps;
• surveys.

SI 72(1) (C) The need to foster And/na’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
Strong and mutually beneficial relationships with suppliers, customers and governments are fundamental pillars for
Andina’s operational success. The Group seeks the promotion and application of certain general principles in such
relationships. The ability to promote them effectively is an important factor in the decision to enter or maintain such
relatronshtps. Some of these principles are:

Customers
- Regular monitoring of customer satisfaction rates.
• Faster response to customer calls,

-7-
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

S172 STATEMENT

5172(1) (C) The need to foster Andina’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
(Continued)

Partners end suppliers
• Tenders to ensure equal opportunities for suppliers and the best commercial outcome for the business.
• Health and Safety control plans throughout the value chain.

Governments and regulators
• Periranent dialogue with the government regarding the tariff update and participation in policy debates of

interest lo Andina and the communities in which it operates.
Society

• Continuous monitoring of environmental management through Annual environment audits.
• Connection with local communities through social media, community workshops and training.
• Sponsoring of charitable social plans such as;

a) I-lands to the Pot (Manos ala olla); employees volunteer program to collect rice and vegetables for Food
Banks;

b) Annual Blood Donation Campaign in cooperation with the Regional Blood Treatment Centre.

5172(1) (0) The impact oIAndina’s operations on the communityand the environment
Andina regularly consults local people and NGOs on the ways in which the Group’s activities could impact the local
community or the environment. The Group actively participates in numerous community projects such as;

• PAS (Solidarity Help Program); to support teaching and assistance to 3,000+ children in low income I
impoverished areas;

• PLEC (Light at Home Program); since 2005 this program has helped 60000+ people (12,500 families) to
access electricity in a safe and economically affordable way;

• Alliances with organizations such as Junior Achievement and FONBEC (Scholarships) to support the
education of young people from poor backgrounds.
Close contribution with the Argentine Red Cross in the framework of the Covid-I9 pandemic.

The Group utilizes the Integrated Management System to ensure continuous monitoring of environmental
management and ongoing compliance with ISO 9001 Quality Management and ISO 14001 Environmental
Management. The Group is subject to annual external environmental audits certified by RAM (National Institute of
Standardization and Certifications).

5172(l) (E) The desirability of Andina maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
The desirability of Andina to maintain its reputation for high standards of business conduct, translates to the Board of
Directors’ intention to behave responsibly and ensure that the business operates in a responsible manner within the
high standards of business conduct and good governance.

Regular communication between the Board and the employees and effective, formally recorded Board Meetings
ensure that such standards are maintained. Where appropriate, independent legal advice is sought in order to support
the decision-making process.

5172(I) (F) The need to act fairly as between members of the Company and the Group
Tne Directors are responsible for choosing a course of actions that enables Andina to achieve its long-term strategy,
taking into consideration the impact on stakeholders. In doing so, the Directors act fairly as between the Company’s
and the Group’s members but are not required to balance the business interest with those of other stakeholders, and
this can sometimes mean that certain stakeholder interests may not be fully aiigned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive

Jorge Rosenbiut (Chairman)
Jorge Rosenbiut joined the board on 31 October 2019. Jorge qualified as a certied Civil Industrial Engineer at the
University of Chile and a master’s degree in Public Administration from the Harvard Kennedy School. He is Chairman
of Smart Utilities LLC and Chairman of the Board of the Institute of the Americas. Mr. Rosenblut acted as Chairman
of the Board of the Latin-American Energy arms of the Enel Group (previously Endesa Spain). Prior to joining the
ranks of corporate executives, Mr. Rosenblut held leadership roles in the Chilean government from 1990 to 1996. In
1994 he was the Undersecretary of Telecommunications and the Undersecretary of the Presidency from 1995 to 1996.

Valeria Inés de Oliveira Cezar (Chief Executive Officer)
Valeria de Oliveira Cézar joined the board on 29 January 2021. She graduated as an Economist from the
Universidad Nacional de Rosario. Later she obtained a Masters degree in Finance from the Tocuato Di Tella
University in Buenos Aires and a diploma in renewable energy from the Champagnat University of Mendoza.
Since 2010, she has worked as a financial analyst and M&A consultant at Ernst & Young, Banco Meridian and
Integra Capital. In 2016 she joined EDEMSA.

Neil Bleasdale (Executive Director)
Neil Bleasdale joined the board on 17 May 2013. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of EDEMSA.
Neil is a businessman and holds a BA. (with honours) from the University of Leeds, England. He also acts as a non-
executive Director and alternate Director of a number of other Argentine companies.

Nicolas Mallo Huergo (Executive Director)
Nicolas Mallo Huergo joined (he board on 27 October 2021. He graduated as a lawyer from the Universidad Catolica
Argentina in 1993 with a law degree, and obtained a Master in Law (LLM.) with honours at Northwestern University
School of Law, Chicago, U.S.A.. in 1999. He was appointed to the National Courts of Buenos Aires, working as a clerk
between 1990 and 1993. He was admitted to the Bar of the City of Buenos Aires in February of 1994 and he is a
member of the Colegio de Abogados de Ia Ciudad de Buenos Aires.

Non-executive
Julian Collins (Non-Executive Director)
Julian Collins joined the board on 12 June 2020, He brings with him extensive experience of working with a number
of multi-national organizations and corporate entities. He is also a Director of a number of UK property companies.

Marcelo Comba (Non-Executive Director)
Marcelo Comba joined the board on 17 May 2013. Marcelo graduated as a solicitor from the University of Buenos
Aires in 1988 and became a Master in Business Law in 1994. After working in the legal departments of Siemens S.A.
and Ferrovias SAC, he has worked since 2002 as a Partner in the law firm of Aidar Bestene- Garcia Moreno &
Associates. He is also the former President of HASA.

Maria Fernanda Martinez (Non-Executive Director)
Fernanda Martinez joined the board on 29 January 2021. She is an Industrial Engineer who graduated from
Universidad Nacional de Cuyo, where she completed an Exchange program at the Center Arts et MOtiers ParisTech
Bordeaux-Talece, obtaining expertise in Environmental Process and Materials Engineering for Sustainable
Development. She has a Postgraduate Degree in Project Management and Administration. With more than five years
of experience in the Renewable Energy sector, she currently serves as EDEMSA’s Senior Analyst in the area of
Development and Evaluation of Energy Projects.

Cecilia Aversa (Non-Executive Director)
Cecilia Aversa joined the board on 27 October 2021. She has a Ph.D. in Political Sciences (Catholic University-
University of Salamanca- University of Pittsburgh). She served at the Ministry of Science, Technology and Innovation
of the Argentine Republic for more than a decade as Counselor for International Relations. In 2020, she assumed her
current role as Managing Director of Innovation at Integra Capital S.A., and became a Member of the Board of
Directors of Integra Lithium.
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ANDINA PLC

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Directors present their annual report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Principal activities
The Group is a Latin American energy group, with electricity generation and distribution interests in Argentina.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

Mr Jorge Rosenblut
Mr Luis Alvarez Poli (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mr Neil Bleasdale
Mr Julian Collins (Appointed 12 June 2020)
Mr Marcelo Comba
MrCarlos Bastos (Resigned 29 January 2021)
Mrs Valeria Ines de Gliveira Cézar (Appointed 29 January 2021)
Mrs Maria Fernanda Martinez (Appointed 29 January 2021)
Mr Ricardo Nicolás Mallo Huergo (Appointed 27 October 2021)
Mrs Cecilia Aversa (Appointed 27 October 2021)

Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 17.

No ordinary dividends were paid or proposed during the year (2019: USsnil). The Directors do not recommend
payment of a dividend.

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors during the year.
These provisions remain in force at the reporting date

Financial instruments
Information about the Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments and financial risks management is included in
note 26.

Disabled persons
Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the
applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their
employment within the group continues and that the appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the group that
the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that of
other employees.

Employee involvement
The Group’s policy is to consult and discuss with employees, through unions, staff councils and at meetings, matters
likely to affect employees’ interests.

Information about matters of concern to employees is given through information bulletins and reports which seek to
achieve a common awareness for all employees of the financial arid economic factors affecting the Group’s
performance.
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ANDINA PLC

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Future developments
Information about (he Group’s and Company’s future developments is presented in the Strategic Report on pages 1 -

4.

Auditors
The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. have expressed their willingness to continue as auditors and a resolution
to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group and Company Financial Statements in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the Directors must not
approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and lair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period. In preparing the Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to;

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently:

state whether for the Group and Company, international accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements;

• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

• prepare the Financial Statements using the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The directors have reviewed the cash position of the Company and the Group for a period to 31 October 2023 and
consider it appropriate that the Company and Group financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis for
the reasons set out below.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of USSgl.2 million and debt of US$5.8 million and the
Company had net current liabilities of US$ 3.4 million and debt of Us$2.8 million.

In assessing the Company’s ability to adopt the going concern basis, the Directors have tested the Company’s ability
to meet its liabilities as they fall due, considering the Board’s approved base case and including a severe but plausible
downside scenario, which still results in positive operational cash flows. In addition, at the beginning of 2021, the
Company cancelled the current debt for USS 2.8 million through the transfer of 1-IDS shares (see note 32).
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ANDINA PLC

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2i220

Going concern

In the event that any liabilities could not be met lie Directors could consider oilier financing alternatives such as the

issuance, of warrants and the sate of investments, as they have done previously,

The Directors have also reviewed thecash flowlorecasis fortheGroup. taking inloaccouni tariff adjustments,currency

liuctualions, scheduled borrowings mpayments and the impactof the Covid-19 pandemic, and they note that the ability

of the Group to continue operating is dependent on their ability to settle their payable balances with CAMMESA.

In 2020 the Company’s subsidiary EDEMSA, whose prindpal activity is electricity distribution in Asgentina, reported a

loss for the year of USS2O.9 million and had a net current assets posilion of US$60.3 million,

However, as detailed in note 18, the delays end uncertainties arising from the implementaliun of the local tariff regime

resulted in EDEMSA deferring payments In its principal supplier CAMMESA, Ihe slate-owned electricity wholesaler,

with a total outstanding debt amounting to US$126.4 million at the reporting date, of which USSlIG million is due

immediately. Currently, the Group does not have sufficient liquid resources to pay/setlle its obligations wilh

CAMMESA. The Board ol Directors of EDEMSA is working closelywith CAMMESA to defne an action plan to address

the current situation and agree on a payment schedule. Whilst in the past both parties have come to an agreement on

a payment plan for previous overdue balances and progress is being made on a number of potential options to cancel

the current overdue debt, in particular under Law 27,591, Article 87, currently there is still no binding agreement. The

Directors are conlident that an agreement and a poymentptanwill be agreed with CAMMESA as has beenproviousty

achieved.

The outstanding debt with CAMMESA,and the Groups inability to setlle this debt, indicates the existence ofa material

uncertainly which nay cast slnificant doubt over the Groups ability to conitnuo as a going concern. Based on the

current progress of the negotiations with CAMMESA and the spedfic amendments to payment terms expected to be

agreed, the Darectors believe that the Group will be able to meet its obligations as they loll dtie. Thus, the Directors

continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated linancial statements. The Group

linancial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if he Group was unable to continue as a going

concern

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each Director In olfice on the date the Directors’ Report was approved:

• as far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit inlormalion that lie auditors of the Group and the

Company are unaware; and

• that he/sIte has taken all tue steps mat the Director ought to have taken as a Director in order to make

himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors at lhe Group and the

Company are aware of that information.

By order of the board,2

Pedro Ivan Mazer
Company Secretary
26 May 2022
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ANDINA PLC

Independent auditors’ report to the
members of Andina Plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Andina PLC’s Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the financial statements):

• give a true and fak view of the state of the Groups and of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December2020 and of the Group’s
loss and the Group’s and the Company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the ‘Annual Report”), whh
cortwrise; the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020; the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows, and
the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity forthe year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements,
which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinIon
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (IJKY’) and applicable law, Our
responsibilities under 15.45 (UK)are furtherdescribed in the Auditors’ responsibilities forthe auditof the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the ERG’s Ethical Standard, and ‘vs have fuifluled our other ethical respcnsiIitias i
accordance with these requirements.

Material uncertainty related to going concern
Informing our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made
in note 1.4 to the financial statements concerning the Group’s ability to continue as a going concem. The Group experienced delays
and uncertainties arising from the in’.piomentation of a incal tariff reoirne which resulted in its subsidiary, EDEMSA deferring
payments to its principal supplier, CAMMESA. As at 31 Deceniber 2020, the Group made a toss in the year of S20Omillion and has
net current liabilities of $91 2 million, Included in its total liabilities is an amount of 5126.4 million owed to its principal supplier
CAMMESA, of which SI Iflmillion is due immediately and at present the Group does not have sufficient liquid resources to settle
this obligation.

The board of EDEMSA is working closely with CAMMESA to define an action plan to address the current situation and agree a
settlement schedule, Whilst the Directors have indicated that they have reasonable expectations that a satisfactory outcome to the
negotiations will be achieved, at the date of signing the financial statements there is no binding agreement in place and the outcome
of these actions is uncertain These conditions, along with the other matters explained in note 1.4 lo the financial statements,
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to conlinue as a going
concern. After considering the matters set out above the Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that a satisfactory
outcome to mitigate effectively the risk will be achieved and for this reason they continue to adopt the going concem basis in
preparkig tne financial statements. The financial statemenis do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group were
unable to continue as a going concern.
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ANDINA PLC

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to
going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information
The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the oilier information. Our opinion on the tinanciat statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors Report. we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicabie legal requirements.

In lightt of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit.
we did not identity any matehal misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
Directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepadng the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Companys ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but
to do s-c.

Auditors responsibilities (or the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) wilt always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance wilh laws and regutalions. We design procedures in line with our

responsibilities! outlined above! to detect material misstatemenls in respect of irregularities! including fraud! The extent to which our

procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and

regulations related to breaches of energy market regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, to tax and employment

laws in lhe jurisdictions in which the Group operates and to unethical and prohibited business practices, and we considered the

extent to v,hich non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements! We also considered those laws and

regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006! We evaluated management!s

incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls)! and

determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce

expenditure, and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

• Inquiries with the Directors and management, regarding its consideration of known or suspected instances of non’compliance

with laws and regulations;

• Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in respect of critical accounting judgements and significant

accounting estimates;
• Review of minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors;
• Inspection of supporting documentation where appropriate; and

• Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with certain unusual account combinations.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non

compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements.

Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error.

as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:

viww.frc.org.uklauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance with

Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, acceptor assume

responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save

where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Oth.er required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• we have not obtained alt the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received

from branches not visited by us; or

• certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Timothy McAllister (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

London

26 May 2022
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Note

Revenue 4 189.280 246,346

Cost of sales HJ2500 (212,978)

Gross profit 25,780 33,368

Distribution costs (17,989) (19,537)

Administrative expenses (18,211) (19,286)

Other operating income 1,461 2,706

Operating loss 5 (8,959) (2,749)

Finance income 9 8,624 13,544

Finance costs 10 (50,569) (58.499)

Hyperinflation impact 1.21 29,086 34,830

Loss before taxation (21,818) (12,874)

income tax credit/(charge) 11 872 (7,701)

Loss for the financial year (20,946) (20,575)

Loss for the financial year is attributable to:

- Owners of the parent company (10,570) (11,615)

- Non-controlling interests (10,376) (8,960)

(20,946) (20,575)

The accompanying notes on pages 26—75 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note 2020 2019

us$.000 us$,000

Loss for the financial year (20946) (20575)

Other comprehensive expense

Items that will not be reclassified to prohe or loss

Translation differences 121 (2,011) (4,457)

Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes (344) (873)

Tax relating to other comprehensive loss
-—

(36) 5

Other comprehensive expense for the year (2,391) (5,125)

Total comprehensive expense for the year (23,337) (25,700)

Total comprehensive expense for the year is attributable to:

- Owners of the parent company (11,510) (13.613)

- Non-controlling interests (11,827) (12,087)

(23337) (25700)

The accompanying notes on pages 26 —75 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT3I DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019

Note US$’OOO US$000 US$000 US$000

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 12 7,573 8,233

Property, plant and equipment 13 198,724 201 .551

Right of use assets 20 1,170 1,224

Inventories 16 2,725 2,742

Trade and other receivables 17 26 309

210,218 214,059

Current assets
Inventories 16 3,234 3279

Trade and other receivables 17 48,788 61,606

Investments 14 54,918 42,336

Cash and cash equivalents 112 10,229 7,851

117,169 115,072

__________

Total assets 327,387 329,131

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (195,217) (167,895)
Borrowings 19 (2,915) (7,875)

Leases 20 (295) (367)

Provisions 21 (8,799) (6,318)

Defined benefit pension liability 23 (1,094) (886)

(208.320) (183,341)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 18 (21,890) (27,561)

Borrowings 19 (2,880) (8,860)

Leases 20 (688) (1,051)

Provisions 21 (266) (402)

Deferred tax liability 22 (33,383) (35,055)

Defined benefit pension liability 23 (3,456) (3,726)

(62,563) (76,655)
Total liabilities (270,883) (259,996)

Net assets 56,504 69,135
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

ASAT3I DECEMBER2020

2020 2019
Note US$’QOQ US$000 U5$’ODD US$000

Equity
Share caphal 25 20,852 14.924

Share premium 25 4:755 -

Translation reserve 25 28.889 29,635
Merger reserve 25 40.432 40,432
Aceumut(ed losses 25 (70,713) (69,949)

Equfty attributable to owners of he parent company 24218 25,022

Non-controllrng inleresis 32.286 44.113
total equity 56.504 69.135

The accomPanying notes on pages 26—75 form an integral part nf these financial satements.

The flnancia statements on pages 17 to 74 were approved by the Beard of Directors and authorized (or saue on 28 May
2022 ar.d are signed on its beh1’by.

4fttCt \
Jorge Rosenjtlut
Chairman /
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Note US$L)U0 IJ5$’OOO US$000 US$600

Non-current assets
14 3a.831 33.52S

invesm.ents
17 5458 -Trade and other receivables

443.269 33.829

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 455 124

Cash and cash equivalents 1A2 19
473

__________

143

__________

40.162 33.972
Total assets

____________

Current liabilities
TraCe and other ayab4es 16 (1.061) (2,326)

19 (2,813: (7.766)Borrowings
(3,67’) (13.092)

Non-currani liabilities
race ens other payables 16 (4.199) (2.501)

IS - (1,014)BorrowIngs
(4.199) (3,515)

Total liabilities (8,073) (13,607)
32,659 20,365Net assets

______

-

Equity
Share capital 25 20,852 14934
Share premium 75 4.756 -

riunstation reserve 25 (2,116) (3.714)
Merger reserve 25 40.432 40,432
Accumulated losses 25 (30,637)
Total equity 31689 20,365

As permitted by 5408 Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presontod its own income statemonl end related
notes. The Company’s profit for the year was US$620,000 (2019- USS 1.826,000 loss).

The accompanying notes on pages 26—75 form on rtegcal par cithese (ironcial Statements.

The (nanciat statements were approved by the Board of Directors and autharizec for issue on 26 May 2022 and mesigned on its behalf by:

N

Jorge Ro ribtut
Cha,tnan
Company Registration No. 609505A
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ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Share Share Translation Merger Accumulated Total

capital premium reserve reserve losses equity

US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000

Balance at 1 January 2019 14.904 - (5,251) 40,432 (29,431) 20,654

Year ended 31 December 2019:

Loss for the year - - - - (1 826) (1826)

Of/icr comprehensive income:

Translation differences - - 1,537 - - 1,537

Total comprehensive expense for the -

- 1,537 - (1,826) (289)
year

____________ ___________ ______________ __________ ____________ _____________

Balance at3I December2019 14,904 - (3,714) 40,432 (31,257) 20,365

Year ended 31 December 2020

Profit for the year - - - - 620 620

Other compre hens/ye expense:

Translation dtfferences - - 998 - 998

Total comprehensive income for the - — - 998 620 1,618

Increase in capital according to Meeting
of the Board of Directors on 30 5,946 4,758 - - - 10,706

December 2020

_______
________ _____________ _______

Balance at 31 December 2020 20,852 4,758 (2,716) 40,432 (30,637) 32,689

The accompanying notes on pages 26— 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ANDINA PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019

Note US$000 US$000 US$000 Us$000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generaled from operations 30 35772 16520

Income taxes paid - (192)

Net cash generated from operating 35772 16,328
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment 13 (9.454) (11,795)

Purchase of current investments net 14 (21,991) (17,309)

Interest received - 4,426

Dividends paid by 47% owned subsidiary (1.063)
Net cash used in investing activities (31.445) (25,741)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 228 408

Repayment of borrowings and interest paid (49) (1,651)

Net cash generated froml(used in) 179 (1,243)
financing activities

Net increasel(decrease) in cash and cash
4,506 (10,656)

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
112 22341

year ‘ 7,851
Effect of foreign exchange rates L12 (2,128) (3,834)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10,229 7,851

The accompanying notes on pages 26—75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Significant non-cash transactions

There were no significant non-cash transactions in 2020 or 2019 apart from the transactions detailed below:

Note 2020 2019

US$000 US$000

Transfer of inventory to property, plant and equipment 2258 3,753

Debt capitalization 19 10,706 -

-24-



ANDINA PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019

Note US$’OOO US$000 US$’OOO US$000

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 31 23 393

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings - 105

Repayment of borrowings — (24) (500)

Net cash used in financing activities __jg4)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1) (2)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 19 20

Effect of foreign exchange rates 1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 19

The accompanying notes on pages 26— 75 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Significant non-cash transactions

There were no significant non-cash transactions iii 2020 or 2019 apart from the transactions detailed below:

Note 2020 2019

uS$I000 US$.000

Debt capitalization 19 10706



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

1.1 General information
Andina Plc (‘the Company”) is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated in England and Wales, The
registered office is 1-3 Charter Square, Sheffield, United Kingdom, Si 41-IS.

1,2 Basis of preparation
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, except for the
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss and the net assets and results
of the Group’s operations in Argentina, an economy that is considered hyperinflationary, which are expressed in
terms of the measuring unit current at the closing date of the reporiing period.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in US dollars (US$), rounded to the nearest thousand,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the applicable framework detailed above requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounls of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision only affects that period or
in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

1.3 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Andina and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) which are controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, where appropriate.

ere necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounng
policies used into line with those used by the Group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s interest
therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination together with the non-controlling interests’ share of profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income since the date of the combination. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The non
controlling interest of shareholders in an acquisition is initially measured at their proportion of the net fair value
of the assets. liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.4 Going concern

The directors have reviewed the cash position of the Company and the Group for a period to 31 October 2023
and consider it appropriate that the Company and Group financial statements are prepared on the going concern
basis for the reasons set out below

At 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of US$91.2 million and debt of US$5.8 million and
the Company had net current liabilities of USS 3.4 million and debt of US$2.8 million.

In assessing the Company’s ability to adopt the going concern basis, the Directors have tested the Company’s
ability to meet its liabilities as they fall due, considering the Board’s epproved base case and including a severe
but plausible downside scenario, which still results in positive operational cash flows. In addition, atthe beginning
o1 2021, the Company cancelled the current debt for USS 2.8 million through the transfer of HDS shares (see
note 32).

In the event that any liabilities could not be met the Directors could consider other financing alternatives such
as the issuance of warrants and the sale of investments, as they have done previously.

The Directors have also reviewed the cash flow forecasts for the Group, taking into account tariff adjustments,
currency fluctuations, scheduled borrowings repayments and the impact of the Covid—19 pandemic, and they
note that the ability of the Group to continue operating is dependent on their ability to settle their payable
balances with CAMESA.

In 2020 the Company’s subsidiary EDEMSA, whose principal activity is electricity distribution in Argentina,
reported a loss for the year of US$20.9 million and had a net current assets position of US$60.3 million.

However, as detailed in note 18, the delays and uncertainties arising from the implementation of the local tariff
regime resulted in EDEMSA deferring payments to its principal supplier CNvIMESA, the stale-owned electricity
wholesaler, with a total outstanding debt amounting to US$126.4 million at the reporting date, of which US$116
million is due immediately. Currently, the Group does not have sufficient liquid resources to pay)settle its
obligations with CAMMESA, The Board of Directors of EDEMSA is working closely with CAMMESA to define an
action plan to address the current situation and agree on a payment schedule. Whilst in the past both parties
have come to an agreement on a payment plan for previous overdue balances and progress is being made on
a number of potential options to cancel the current overdue debt, in particular under Law 27,591, Article 87,
currently there is still no binding agreement. The Directors are confident that an agreement and a payment plan
will be agreed with CAMMESA as has been previously achieved,

The outstanding debt with CAMMESA, and the Group’s inability to settle this debt, indicates the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Based on the current progress of the negotiations with CAMMESA and the specific amendments to payment
terms expected to be agreed, the Directors believe that the Group will be able to meet its obligations as they fall
due. Thus, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, The Group financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the
Group was unable to continue as a going concern.
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue
Revenue relates mainly to electricity generation and distribution services.

Energy supply to business and residential customers
The Group supplies electricity to residential and business customers in Mendoza, Argentina. The vast majority
of contractual energy supply arrangements have no fixed duration, require no minimum consumption by (he
customer and can be terminated by either party at any time. The Group has determined that no enforceable
rights and obligations exist at inception of the contract and arise only once the Group is the legal supplier of
energy to the customer. The performance obUgation is the supply of energy over the contractual term. The
performance obligation is considered to be satisfied as the customer consumes the units of energy delivered.
This is the point at which revenue is recognized.

In respect of energy supply contracts, the Group considers that it has the right to consideration from the customer
for an amount that corresponds directly with the value delivered to the customer through their consumption. It is
the judgement of the Group that the customer consumes energy as the Group supplies and, as a result, the
Group recognizes revenue for the amount which the entity has a right to invoice. The Group’s assessment of
the amount that it has a right to invoice includes an assessment of energy supptied to customers between the
date of (he last meter reading and the year end (known as unread revenue).

Unread electricity comprises unbilled revenue and is estimated through the billing systems, using historical
consumption patterns, on a customer-by-customer basis, taking into account weather patterns, toad forecasts
and the differences between actual meter readings being returned and system estimates. Actual meter readings
continue to be compared to system estimates between the balance sheet date and the finalization of the
accounts.

The Group holds a number of energy supply power contracts that specify a minimum consumption volume over
a specified contractual term. The transaction price for these contracts is the minimum supply volume mulbplied
by the price determined by EPRE per unit of energy. Revenue from the sale of additional volumes is considered
to be variable and not included in the transaction price. Revenue for these contracts continues to be recognized
as invoiced.

Energy generated
The Group generates electricity to be sold through the national Whotesale Electricity Market (MEM),
administrated by CAMMESA and regulated by the National Secretary of Energy.

The amount of energy generated is determined by the hourly demand that CAMMESA has and the price is
established by SEN. There is a single performance obligation. The Company recognizes its income based onthe amounts expected to be received, once the performance obligation has been satisfied.

Other operating income
Other operating income primarily arises from ancillary services provided to third parties and is recognized at thetime the service is provided.

- OR -



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired business at the dale of acquisition. Goodwill is not amortized. It is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an assets fair value less costs to disposal (FVLCD) and value in use
(VIU). For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at their lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units or CGU).

Concession assets
Concession assets represent the amount paid to acquire the concession rights and are comprised of the
electricity distribution and the electricity generation businesses (see note 12).

Concession assets acquired are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition. Amortization is charged on a
straight-line basis as follows:

Concession 30 years (EDEMSA) and 50 years (HASA)

1.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are shown at cost less subsequent depreciation. Costs include expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate.
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straighi-line method to allocate the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life, as follows:

Land and buildings 30 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment up to 25 years
Networks and power transformers 30 to 50 years
Transformers 30 to 40 years
Work in progress and other assets 4 to years

Land and work-in-progress included within ‘Work in progress and other assets’ are not depreciated. Other assets
include IT and communication equipment, furniture and other goods.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sate proceeds
and the carrying value of the asset and is recognized in the income statement.
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Non-current investments
in its separate financial statements, the Company recognizes investments in subsidiary companies measured
at cost less any provision for impairment.

i.e Borrowing costs related to non-current assets
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which are assets thaI necessarily lake a substantial period of time to get ready fortheir intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

The commencement date for capitalization is when (a) the Group incurs expenditures for the qualifying asset;
(b) it incurs borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale.

Alt other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

1.10 Impairment of non-current assets
The carrying amount ot the Group’s non-current assets is compared to the recoverable amount of the assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the net book value may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.

Value in use is estimated by reference to the net present value of expected future cash flows of the relevant
cash generating unit.

If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount of an asset, an impairment loss is recognized. The
revised carrying amounts are amortized in tine with the Group’s accounting policy.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed if the recoverable amount increases as a result of a reversal
of the conditions that originally resulted in the impairment, The reversal is recognized in the income statement
and is limited to the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized in the prior reporting periods.

1.11 Inventories
Raw materials and consumables are measured at the iower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average cost formula method. Classification is performed based on average consumption of
these assets in recent years. The Group has no history of obsolete or slow-moving inventory,

1.12 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include call deposits held with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of 3 months or less.

The Group The Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

us$,000 LlS$’Ooo US$000 US$000Cash at bank and in hand 2.091 6,670 18 19
Short term deposits 8.138 1,181 - -

10,229 7,851 18 19

1.13 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Group statement of financial position when theGroup becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position and statement ofcomprehensive income when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts andthe Group intends to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and liability simultaneously.
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ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

113 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabililies (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from tho fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inilial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in profil or loss,

Financial assets
All recognized financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method:

• The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and,

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet
the criteria to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. Such assets
are carried at fair value with gains or losses recognized in the income statement.

The Group does not hold any financial assets that meet conditions for subsequent recognition at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI’3.

Impairment ef financial assets
The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured
at amortized cost which comprise mainly trade receivables. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.
The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL on trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s hislorical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognize a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in (he asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities
The classification of financial liabilities at initial recognition depends on the purpose forwhich the financial liability
was issued and its characteristics, All purchases of financial liabilities are recorded on trade date, being the date
on which (he Group becomes party to the contractual requirements of the financial liability. Unless otherwise
indicated the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities approximate to their fair values, The Group’s
financial liabilities consist only of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost.



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

113 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortized cost
Financial habilities that are not (I) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The Group’s financial liabilities measured at amortized cost comprise trade and other payables, and
loans and borrowings. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
asseuliability and of allocating ir!terest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that discounts estimated fulure cash receipts/payments through the expected life of the financial
asset/liability or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Dorecognition of financial liabilit/es
A financial liability (in whole or in part) is derecognized when the Group has extinguished its contractual
obligations, it expires or is cancelled. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the statement of
comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement hierarchy
The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value using a fairvalue hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the fair value measurement (note 26). The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2);
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within the financial asset or financial liability is determined on the basis of
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

1.14 Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
au of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Equity instruments issued by the Company for non-cash consideration are recorded at themarket value of the equity instrument at the date of issue, net ot direct ssue costs.

1.15 Taxation

The income lax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in the
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at thestatement of financial position date in the countries where Ihe Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect tosituations in which applicable tax regulation is subjeci to interpretation. It establishes provisions whereappropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE ANANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.15 Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable enlity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Minimum notional income tax
The Group determines the tax on notional presumed income by applying the current rate of 1% on the Groups
taxable assets at year-end. The tax on notional presumed income and the income lax complement each other.
The Group’s tax obligation for each year will be equal to the higher of these taxes. However, should the tax on
notional presumed income exceed income lax in any given financial year, such excess may be computed as a
payment on account of any excess of income tax over the tax on minimum presumed income that may arise in
any of the ten subsequent financial years. The Group recognized the lax on notional presumed income earned
in previous years as a credit, considering that it will offset future taxable income.

In 2019 the application of the minimum notional income tax was repealed for the years beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

1.16 Provisions
Provisions for legal and other claims are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated, Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the increases specific to the liability.

1.17 Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognized as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are
required to be recognized as part of the cost of stock or non-current assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognized in the period in which the employee’s services are
received.

Termination benefits are recognized immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed
to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

St
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

Long term benefits for years of service
The Group giants compensation to employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement for the industry
labor union, who have completed twenty, twenty five, thirty and thirty five years of service. This is paid in the
form of a special remuneration equivalent to the monthly salary of the month in which the amount of years of
service condhions is met. This amount doubles when the employee reaches forty years of service.

The cost of providing this benefit is recognized as a liability and an expense over the period in which the
employees services are received.

Long term benefits for retirement or disability
The Group has a defined benefit plan. This represents accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the
collective bargaining agreement for the industry labor union, for staff reaching retiring age or retiring as a result
of disability prior to this.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method
and is based on actuarial advice.

The change in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service during the year is recognized as an
employee cost. The cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments are recognized as
an expense in measuring profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The net interest element is determined by multiplying the net defined benefit liability by the discount rate, taking
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and
benefit payments. The net interest is recognized in profit or loss as other finance revenue or cost.

Remeasurement changes comprise actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on
the net defined benefit liability excluding amounts included in net interest. These are recognized immediately in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and are not reclassified to profit and loss in
subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 share-based payments
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Company.

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the granting of the options is recognized as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted.

Equity-settled, share-based payments are measured at fair value on the date they are granted by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments granted using the Black-Scholes model. The fair value determined at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis during the vesting period, based on the estimate of the shares
that will eventually be vested. A corresponding adjustment is made to equity,

The expense in relation to options over the parent shares granted to employees of a subsidiary is recognized
by the company as a capital contilbution and presented as an increase in the company’s investment in that
subsidiary.

1.19 Leases
IFRS 16 was adopted on 1 January 2019 without the restatement of comparative figures, The following policy
applies subsequent to the date of initial application, 1 January 2019.

Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease
term, with the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent to the lease unless this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Group’s incremental borrowing rate on the commencement of the lease is used.
Variable lease payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index
or rate. In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liabitity assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they
relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:
amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favor of the Group if it is reasonably certain to
assess that option; and
any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated based on
termination option being exercised.

Right-of-use assets are initiaily measured by the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentive
received, and increased by:

lease payments made on or before the commencement of the lease;
initial direct costs incurred and
the amount of any provision recognized when the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove
or restore the leased asset.

Subsequent to its initial measurement, lease liabilities increase as a result of interests charged at a constant
rate on the outstanding balance and are reduced after tease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease.

WTien the Group revises its estimates on the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability
to reflect the payments to be made over the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount rate that
was applied on the lease commencement. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the
variable element of future lease payments such as a rate or index, is revised. In both cases an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset with the revised carrying amount amortized
over the remaining (revised) tease term.
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I Accounting policies (Continued)

1.19 Leases (Continued)
Rentals payable under shari-term cvi value leases, including any lease incentives received, are charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which the economic benefits of the leased asset are consumed.

The following policy is applied prior to the date of initial application of IFRS 16, 1 January 2019.

Determining whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and / or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Leases of plant and equipment where the Group assumed a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership
were classified as a finance lease. Finance leases were capitalized at the estimated present value of the
underlying lease payments. Each lease payment was allocated between the liability and the finance charges to
achieve a constant rate on the balance outstanding. The plant and equipment acquired under the finance lease
were depreciated over the useful lives of the assets, or over the lease term if shorter.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were retained by the lessor were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases were charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, except when another more
systematic basis would be more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits of the leased
asset are consumed.

1.20 Government grants
Government grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable certainty that those grants will
be collected and that the Group will meet all the conditions established.

Government grants received in relation to the purchase of non-current assets are deducted from the cost of
such assets. These assets are depreciated overtheir estimated usefUl lives based on their net acquisition cost.

1.21 Foreign exchange

Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each Group company are maintained in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency), which in the case of the Argentinean
companies is the Argentine Peso and in the case of the Company is Pounds Sterling. For the purposes of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and iinanciat position of each Group entity are expressed in US
dollars, which is the presentation currency for the consolidated and Company financial statements, to facilitate
comparison with other utility companies.

The financial statements are presented in USS and the average rate used for the year 2020 was US$1,284 to
£1 and AR 569,7 to US$1 and the 2020 closing rate used was US$13654 to £1 and AR$83.6 lo US$1 (2019:
average rate US$1 .277 to El and AR$48,25 to US$1 and closing rate US$1.33 to £1 and AR$59.79 to US$1).

-‘Pt
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

I Accounting policies (Continued)

1,21 Foreign exchange (Continued)
Functional currency of a hyperinflationary economy
lAS 29 requires that the financial statements of an entity with the functional currency of a hyper inflationary
economy must be expressed in the measuring unil current at the closing date of the financial year being
informed, regardless of whether they are based on the historical cost method or the current cost method. To this
effect, in general terms, the inflation produced since the acquisition or lhe revaluation date, accordingly, must
be calculated within the non-monetary section. The said requirements also include the comparative information
of the financial statements.

In order to determine whether an economy is considered hyperinflationary according to lAS 29, the Standard
details a series of elements to be considered which include an accumulated inflation rate in three years that
approximates or exceeds 100%. Hence, according to lAS 29, the Argentine economy must be considered as
hyperinflationary since 1 July 2Q18.

According to lAS 29, the financial statements of an entity that reports in the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy must be reported in terms of the current measuring unit at the date of the financial statements. All the
amounts in the statement of financial position that are not presented in lhe current measuring unit at the tine of
presentation must be updated by applying a general price index. The components of the income statement must
be presented in the updated measuring unil on lhe date of presentation of the financial statements by applying
a general price index from the date on which lhe income and expenses were accounted.

The inflation adjustment of initial prices was computed taking mb consideration the indexes established by the
FACPCE (Argentine Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Sciences) based on the price index
published by the National Statistics Institute (INDEC).

The price indexes used for raslaternent of the financial statements were:

• 2018 = 184.2552
• 2019=2834442
• 2020 = 385.8826

The main procedures to determine the inflation adjustment are the following:

• All monetary assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position are not adjusted, since the
financial statements are already re-expressed at the year-end exchange rate.

• Non-monetary assets and liabilities that were computed at cost prices at the date of the statement of
financial position and the capital assets are adjusted based on the corresponding adjustment
coefficients.

• All the elements in the income statement are updated applying the relevant conversion factors.
• Gains and losses in purchasing power arising from the net monetary posilion are recognized in the

consolidated statement of income as a separate line under hyperinflation impact and amounted to
US$29.09 million (2019: USS 34.8 million).

On the initial adjustment for inflation, the capital asset accounts were adjusted as follows:

• The capital was adjusted from the date of the previous inflation period of Argentina.

Transactions and balances
When preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of
the transactions, On each reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date on which the fair value was determined. The
exchange differences that arise are included in the income stalement or the period.

-‘U-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3’! DECEMBER 2020

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

1.21 Foreign exchange (Continued)
Foreign subsidiaries conversion
The results and flnancial positions ci the Company’s subsidiaries that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s currency are converted to the reporting currency as follows, depending on whether the functional
currency is in a hyperinflationary environment or not.

Entities with non-hyperinflationary functional currency
Assets and liabilities of each statement of financial position presented are converted at the exchange
rate of the closing date of the statement of financial position.

• The accounting capital of each statement of financiat position presented is converted at the historical
exchange rate.

• Profits and losses of each income statement are converted at the annual average exchange rate (when
the average exchange rate does not represent a reasonable approximation to the accumulated effect
of the transaction exchange rates, the exchange rate at the date of the transaction or monthly averages
are used).

• All exchange rate differences arising from this are accounte-d for in other comprehensive income.
• Gains and losses derived from the conversion of the opening net assets of the Company at prevailing

exchange rates are transferred to the translation reserve.

Subsidiaries with hyperinflaticnary functional currency
• Assets, liabilities and capital from the statements of financial position, as well as profit and loss from

the statement of income, are converted at the exchange rate on the closing date of the statement of
financial position, after being adjusted to the functional currency.

• Assets, liabilities, capital, profits and losses of the comparative period are kept in accordance with the
amounts obtained in the conversion of the previous financial year. Said amounts are not adjusted to
the following exchange rates because the Company presents its financial information in US dollars, a
non-hyperinflationary currency.

1.22 Finance income
Finance income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest
rate appticable.

2 Change in accounting policy

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2020
A number of new and amended standards and interpretations issued by lASS have become effective for the
first time for financial periods beginning on (or after 1 January 2020. None of these new and amended standards
and interpretations had a significant effect on the Company because they are either not relevant to the
Company’s activities or require accounting which is consistent with the Company’s current accounting policies.

New standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted
There are a number of standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations which have been issued by
the IASB that are effective in future accounting periods and which have not been adopted early. None of these
are expected to have a significant effect on the Company, in particular:

• lAS 1 Presentation of Financial statements (Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current)
lAS 16 Property. Plant and Equipment (Proceeds before Intended use)
lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: (Sets out how to consider the cost of

fulfilling a contract to classify it as Onerous Contracts)
IFRS 17 insurance Contracts (Sets out principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure of insurance contracts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Groups accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The esliniates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisionstoaccounting estimates
ale recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised when the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods when the revision affects both current and future periods.

Criticat judgements

Control over subsidiaries
Management has evaluated the level of influence and control exercised by the Company over its investments
and has determined the following:

I) Hidroeiéctica del Sur S.A. (HDS)

As of 31 December 2020, Andina Plc owned, through Andes Electricidad S.A, 80% of Hidroelectrica del Sur S.A.
(SOS) shares, which holds 54% of HASA (resulting in a 47% indirect holding). Post 31 December 2020, as part
of the Company’s agreement with SAED to settle its outstanding debt (refer to Note 32 for further details), the
Company sold 40% of its capital and voting rights in HDS, thereby reducing its holding to 40%.

The ‘highly probable” criteria set by IFRS 5 was not met as of 31 December 2020 since both Andina and SAED
were in the process of negotiation and to complete their agreement, the transfer of share capital had to be
effectively approved. Therefore, the assets and liabil:tes associated with our HDS business are not classified as
held for distribution as of 31 December 2020 and, consequently, the Company has presented consolidated
financial figures including HDS and HASA.

ii) Investment in South American Energy LLP (“SAE”)

On 1 December 2020, South American Energy LLP was created. Andina initially had 52% of the membership
interest and voting power. On 28 December 2020, Rochester Holdings LLP, Global Income Fund Limited, Equal
Power Distribution SCSp and Andina signed a binding agreement to reduce Andinas participation to 23.4%. It
was also agreed that the adoption of members resolutions in SAE would require the favorable vote of members
holding more than 70% of the aggregate interest and voting power.

As from 30 April 2021, Andina’s membership interest in South American Energy LLP has been reduced to 23.4%
of the shares and voting power.

On 23 December 2020, South American Energy LLP bought a 95% equity stake and voting power of Energia
del Cono Sur S.A (EDELCOS). and before the end of 2020 South American Energy LLP also acquired through
a mandate the rest of the capital stock and voting power in EDELCOS.

Considering the above, the financial statements of South American Energy LLP, and its subsidiary EDELCOS,
have been accounted for as an Associate under lAS 28 and are not consolidated as of 31 December 2020.



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Debt to equity conversion

In November 2020, Andina plc signed an agreement to convert some debts of Andina plc and Andes Electricidad
S.A. including interest, into equity shares of the Company equivalent to USS 10.7 million (see more detaits in
note 19).

According with ARC 19, if the fairvaiue of the equity instruments cannot be reliably measured, the fairvalue of
the existing financial liability is used to measure the gain or loss resulting from the difference between the
financial liability and the issuance of the entity’s own equity instruments.

Management assessed that the loan contracts had been entered under market conditions, and therefore, the
carrying value of the financial liabilities and the shares were considered to represent their lair value,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities are as follows:

Carrying value of Company investment and Group tangible and intangible assets
Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed annually, taking into account prices prevailing at each
reporting date. The carrying values of tangible and intangible assets are atso reviewed for impairment when there
has been an event or a change in the circumstances that would indicate that the carrying amount might not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less the cost to sell and the
value in use. Fair value is determined as the anunt that would be obtained from the sale of the asset in an
arm’s length transaction

The value in use is determined using the present value of the future cash flovjs expected to be derived from an
asset or cash-generating unit. The calculation of estimated future cash flows and residual values is based on
reasonable management estimates and is therefore subjective. Operating and economic assumptions that could
affect the valuation of the assets using discounted cash flow models are regularly reviewed and updated as part
of the monitoring of the operational and financial performance and the forecasting processes of the Group.
Judgement is required to determine if operating and economic changes are significant and impact the potential
performance of an asset or a cash-generating unit and, therefore, determine whether they are an indication of
an impairment or an impairment reversal. The key assumption have been included in note 13.

The directors carried out impairment tests of assets at the cash-generating unit level, refer to note 13.

Employee benefits
The Group recognizes provisions for benefits based on years of service and benefits for retirement or disability
that includes management’s best estimate of certain variables that may not ultimately match the amounts actually
paid at the end of service. The key assumptions are wage increases, employee turnover, mortality rate and
discount rate. Past experience and actuarial tables of mortality are used to make the estimate. For further details
refer to note 23.

Impairment of financial assets
The allowance for the impairment of accounts receivable is assessed based on the delinquent balance, which
comprises all such debt arising from the bills for electricity consumption of small demand (TI) and medium-
demand (T2). The Company’s Management records an allowance by applying to the delinquent balances of each
customer category an uncollectible rate that is determined according to each customer category, based on the
historical comparison of collections made.

Additionally, and faced with temporary and/or exceptional situations, the Company’s Management may redefine
the amount of the allowance, specifying and supporting the criteria used in all the cases.

The Company has performed a review of the financial assets it currently measures and classifies at fair value
through profit or loss or at amortized cost and has concluded that they meet the conditions to maintain their
classification.

-An-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Contingencies and provisions for lawsuits
The Company is a party to several complaints, lawsuits and other legal proceedings, including customer claims.
The Company’s potential liability with respect to such claims, lawsuits and legal proceedings may not be
accurately estimated. The Company’s Management, with the assistance of its legal advisors, periodically
analyzes the status of each signilicant matter and evaluates the Company’s potential financial exposure. lithe
loss deriving from a complaint or legal proceeding is considered probable and the amount can be reasonably
esbmated, a provision is recorded.

Provisions for contingent losses represent a reasonable estimate of the losses that will be incurred, based on the
information available to Management at the date of the financial statements preparation, taking into account the
Company’s litigation and settlement strategies. These estimates are mainly made by the Company’s
Management. However, if the Managements estimates proved wrong, the current provisions could be
inadequate and result in a charge to profits that could have a effect on the Statements of Financial Position,
Comprehensive Income (Loss), Changes in Equity and Cash Flows.

4 Revenue

2020 2019
us$,000 us$’ooo

Revenue analyzed by class of business
Electricity distribution 185,447 240,114
Electricity generation 3,557 6,232
Other 276 -

189,280 246,348

the Group’s revenue arises entirely within Argentina.

5 Operating loss

2020 2019
tJs$,000 us$’ooO

Operating loss for the year is stated after charging:
Depreciation of owned property, plant and equipment 9,253 9,669
Amortization of intangible assets 318 252

(*) The amortization charge for the year is included in the cost of sales line in the consolidated income statement
as it relates to the concession assets,

-At
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6 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the Group and Company during
the year was:

Group Company

2020 2019 2320 2019
Number Number Number Number

Selling 156 156 - -

Technical 399 404 - -

Administration 191 196

________

5 5
Total 746 756 5 5

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
tJS$.000 tJS$’OOO USV000 US$’oOO

Wages and salaries 23,403 26,355 480 362
Social security costs 5,798 6.593

_______

72 55
29,201 32$48 552 417

7 Auditors’ remuneration

2020 2019
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and associales: US$000 US$000

For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the Group and Company 130 117
Audit of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries

_______

-— fflO

_________

lao

290 297
For other services
Audit-related assurance services 3
Taxation compliance services

_______

6 7
7 10
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8 Directors remuneration

2020 2019
us$,000 us$.000

Remuneration for qualifying services 480 417

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid to the highest paid director:

2020 2019
us$,000 us$,000

Remuneration for qualifying services 146 178

9 Finance income

2020 2019
uss,000 us$,000

Interest income 4342 8,236
(Loss)Igain on financial instruments measured at fair value thrcugh

2 646 5308profit or loss
Income for refinancing agreement 1,817 -

Exchange gain 5,111 -— -

8,624

-

13,544

10 Finance costs

2020 2019
us$,000 us$1000

Interest on borrowings and exchange loss 8,574 9,455
Commercial interest 41995 49,044

50,569 58499

11 Tax on (loss)

2020 2019
us$’ooo us$,000

Current tax
Corporation tax on profit or loss for the current year 800 680
Deterred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1672) 7,021

Total tax (credit)Icharge
—- (872)

— 7,701



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS tCONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

11 Tax on (loss) (Continued)

The actual (credit)/charge for the year can be reconcited to Ihe expected (credit)/charge for the year based on the
profit or toss and the standard rate of tax as loflows:

2020 2019
uss.000 Us$,000

Loss before taxation (21,818) (12874)

Expected lax credit based on the standard rate of corporation tax in r 549 (3 662Argentina of 30% (2019: 30%)
Unutitized tax losses carried forward (94) (347)
Other permanent differences 282 110
Hyperintlation impact (3,126) 2,265
Fiscal utility impact 8,611 9,535

Taxation (credit)/charge (872) 7,701

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been
recognized directly in other comprehensive income:

2020 2019
us$,000 us$’ooo

Deferred tax arising on:
Actuarial differences recognized as other comprehensive income 36 (5)
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11 Tax on (loss) (Continued)

The Group was liable 10 pay a minimum notional income tax at the applicable tax rate, of 1%, calculated on the
amount of computable assets at the reporting date. This lax was supplementary to corporation tax and the
Groups lax liability for each financial yearwas the higher of the minimum notional income tax and the corporation
tax for the year. tithe minimum notional income tax for a given financial year exceeded the amount of income
tax, such excess was able to be carried forward as a partial payment of corporation tax for any of the following
ten financial years. The Group recognized the tax on notional presumed income eamed in previous years as a
credit, considering that it would offset future taxable income. See note 22.

In 2019 the application of the minimum notional income tax was repealed for years beginning on or after 1
January 2019. However, the credit of USO 1,382 at the year end, is estimated to be use as a partial payment of
corporation tax in the next fiscal year.

Factors affecting future tax charge
The following tax changes enacted in December 2019 and 2021 will affect Andina’s future tax charge:

Income tax for Argentine companies: In June 2021, law 27,630 was enacted, which establishes a new
structure of tiered rates for income tax wilh three segments in relation Ic the level of accumulated
taxable net income. The new tax rates are:

- 25% for accumulated taxable net earnings of up to ARS 5 million
- 30% for the second tranche, which will reach taxable profits of up to ARS 50 million
- 35% for taxable profits over AR$ 50 million

A withholding tax of 7% was introduced oil dividends or earnings distribution by companies with a
permanent eslablishnient in Argentina. This was effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January
2018, The rate will be increased to 13% for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2022. These
changes are expected to increase the Group’s lax burden.



ANDINA PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

12 Intangible assets

ConcessionGroup
Assset
us$,000

Cost
At 1 January 2019 16.052
Hyperinflation adjustments 9,429
Exchange adjustments (9,163)
Al 31 December 2019 15,318
Hyperinflation adjustments 4,218
Exchange adjustments (4,648)
Al 31 December 2020 15,888
Accumulated amortization and impairment
At 1 January 2019 7,281
Amorlization charge 252
Hyperinflation adjustments 5,174
Exchange adjustments (4,622)
At31 December 2019 8,085
Amortization charge 318
Hyperinliation adjustments 2,215
Exchange adjustments (2303)
At 31 December 2020 8,315
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 7,573
Al 31 December2019 8,233
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12 Intangible assets (Continued)

Concession assets
Concession assets represent the amount paid to acquire the concession rights and are comprised of the electricity
distribution and the eleclricrty generation businesses.

- Distribution assets

Under a 1998 concession agreement, SODEMSA was awarded an exclusive right to distribute electricity in the
province of Mendoza. The concession agreement is for 30 years divided into three management periods of 10 years
each.

The concession assets related to the electricity distribution business were fully impaired in previous years based
on the value in use analysis carried out by the Group. The assets remain impaired as of the reporting date.

- Generation assets

Under a 1994 concession agreement, HASA was awarded a 50-year concession to operate the Ameghino hydro
power generating plant located in the province of Chubut.

The book values of the concession assets related to the electricity generation business do not exceed the estimated
value in use under current economic and technical conditions
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13 Property, plant and equipment

Networks and Work inLand and Machinery and
- power Transformers progress and TotalGroup buildings equipment transformers other assets

us$,000 uss’OOO lJss,000 us$’OOO us$’OOo lJs$,000
Cost
At I January 2019 29.825 24,201 279,499 34,034 59,969 427,528
Additions - 1,062 125 128 14,243 15,548
Transfers 2456 17 6,902 1,056 (10431) -

Hyperinflation adjustments 9,816 7,207 94,620 13,964 17,671 143,278
Exchange adjustments (11.069) (8.982) (103.731) (12,631) (22,256) (158.669;
At 31 December 2019 31.028 23.495 277.415 35,551 59,196 427.685
Additions 173 22 255 11,262 11,712
Transfers 201 1,075 7.032 935 (9,243)
Disposals - - - - (20) (20)
Hyperinflation adjustments 8,020 6,074 71,105 9,448 15.301 110,548
Exchange adjustments (8,837)

_______

(6,691) (79.010) (10,410) (16,86fl (121,809)
Al 31 December 2020 30,585 23,975 277,397 35,524 59.635 428.116
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At I January 2019 7.524 19,054 160,713 19,415 17,292 223,998
Depreciation charge 998 531 6,311 1,137 592 9.669
Hyperinflation adjustments 2,495 6,399 64,089 9,347 4,117 86,447
Exchange adjustments (2,793) (7,071) (59,328) (8,370) (6,418) (93,980)
At31 December2019 8.224 18,913 161,785 21,529 15.683 226,134
Depreciation charge 980 530 6,176 1.142 425 9.253
Disposals . - -

- (20) (20)
Hyperinflation adjustments 2,120 4,873 52,107 6,807 4,054 69,951
Exchange adjustments (2,343) (5,386) (56.374) (7,369) (4,464) (75,935)
At 31 December2020 8,981 18.930 163,694 22,109 15,678 229,392
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2020 21,604 5,045 113,703 14,415 43,957 198,724
At31 December2019 — 22,804 — 4.582 115,630 — 15,022 43.513 201,551

The Company had no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019.
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13 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Underthe contracts for which the Group’s electricity generation and distribution assets were acquired and regulated,
there are restrictions on the use of said assets and also obligations to maintain relevant assets with the intention of
protecting the services they provide. In addition, the Group cannot pledge relevant assets as collateral for
borrowings, except for those borrowings incurred to finance the acquisition of such assets.

Andina operates in a tough economic context, with a hyperinflationary environment as well as uncertainly and
delays in tariff adjustments. This has had an adverse impact on the Group’s operating results, triggering an
impairment review under lAS 35 ‘impairment of assets’.

The Board has carried out an impairment review of long-term assets by comparing their carrying amount to the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal (FVLCD”) or value in use (“VIU). For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at their lowest level for which there are largely independent cash inflows (CGU).

The VIU for each cash generating unit (CGU) is determined by calculating the net present value of the future cash
flows expected to be generated by each CGU. The estimates of future cash flows were derived from approved
extrapolated financial budgets using an estimated industry growth rate. The cash flows include the following key
assumptions:

1) Tariff increases: Management has calculated these increases based on the adjustment mechanism agreed in
the concession contract and the current agreed tariffs;

2) Discount rate: The weighted average growth rate is consistent with the forecasts included in the industry
reports. The discount rate used is a real interest rate and reflects specific risks related to the industry and the
country of operation;

3) Growth rates: The cash flows include an estimated growth rate of 1%, which the Directors believe reflects the
expected annual economic growth in the areas where the Group operates;

4) Tax rate: Management has used the tax rate of 35% that are expected to be in effect in each of the periods
considering the current tax law and

5) Inflation and exchange rates: They are based on estimated and current market inflation and exchange rates.

The VIU calculations for each OGU indicate that tnere is no impairment at the year end.

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions
The impairment is more sensitive to movements in tariffs and discount rate. Accordingly, management has
undertaken a sensitivity analysis on these two key assumptions as outlined below:

Tariff
Discount rate

Change in assumption Impairment charge

Decrease of US$ 6.81 million
Increase of 20%

- USS 6.95 million

- q -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

14 Investments

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

Note US$000 US$000 US$000 US$’OOO

Non-current

Investments in subsidiaries 15 - - 34831 33829
-

- 34,831 33,829
Current

Listed investments 50,940 27,972 - -

Other investments 3,978 — 14,354
-

-

54,918 42,336 - -

54,918 42,336 34,831 33,829

Movements in investments Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000

At 1 January 42,336 38,465 33,829 32,398
Additions 31,023 19,789 -

-

Disposals (9,032) (2,480) - -

Valuation 2,649 5,134 -

Exchange differences (12,058) (18,572) 1,002 1,431
At 31 December 54,918 42,336 34,831 33.829

Investments in subsidiaries
The Directors consider the carrying value of investments in subsidiaries to be recoverable based on Ihe value in use
of the assets in HASA and EDEMSA.

Listed investments
Listed investments comprise mainly national government bonds from Argentina. These financial assets are valued
based on their quoted prices at The reporting date (Level 1).

Other investments
Other investments include mainly trust and common funds, and foreign currency. They are carried at fair value through
profit or loss based on management’s best estimate (Level 2).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

15 Subsidiaries and related undertakings

Details of Ihe Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Name Country of Registered address Principal Control % Held % Held
incorporation activity 2020 2019

Andina Electricrdad
UK

1-3 Charter Square,
Holding Direct 100 100Limited Sheffield, Si 4H5

Maipu 1252, 2nd Floor,

Andes Electricidad 8k Argentina Ciudad Autonoma de Holding Direct 100 100
Buenos Aires

lnversora Andina do
Electricidad 5k Argentina

Belgrano 815-
Holding Indirect 100 100Mendoza(“IADESA”)

Belgrano 815
Holding Indirect 100 100Mendinvert SA. Argentina

Mendoza
Belgrano 815-

Holding Indirect 100 100SODEMSA Argentina
Mendoza

Empresa Distribuidora de
Electricidad do Mendoza Argentina

Belgrano 815- Electricity
Indirect 51 51Mendoza distributionSA. (‘EDEMSA”)

Juez Tedin N” 2728 -Hidroelectrica del Sur
SA. ç’HDS”) Argentina Ciudad Autonorna do Holding Indirect 80 80

Buenos Aires
Hidroelectrica Ameghino Sarmiento 698- Electricity

Indirect 47 47Argentina
Trelew- Chubul generationS.A. ç’HASK)

South American Energy
UK 1-3 Charter Square.

Hding No -LLP Sheffield, Si 4HS
Av. Maipu 1252, 12th Electricity
Floor - Ciudad generationEnergia del Cono Sur

Argentina
Autonoma do Buenos and

No (*) -

S.A. (EDELCOS)
Aires distribution

The Company’s subsidiary undertakings all have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares.

EDEMSA’s financial statements are available at vndw.cnv.gov.ar

EDEMSA’s shares, rights and obligations under the concession contract may not be assigned, in whole or part, to a
third party without the prior consent of the province of Mendoza.

(“) See note 3.

in 2021 EDELCOS bought 51% of the capital stack and voting power in EDENOR, see more details about this
acquisition in note 32.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

16 Inventories

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

lJs$,000 us$’oOO us$,000 us$•000
Non-current
Raw materials and consumables 2,725 — 2742 -

Current
Raw materials and consumables 3234 3279 - -_________ -

During the year USS2.7 mtllion of inventory. mostly spare parts, was transferred to property, plant and equipment
(2019: US$3.8 million); US$2.6 million was transferred to expenses (2019: US$2.7 miliion) and included in Cost of
Sates’.

Inventory has been classified as current and non-current to more accurately reflect the period of consumption. No
inventory was written off in the year.

17 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

us$000 us$ooo us$000 us$000
Non-current
Amounts owed by group undertakings

- 5,458 -

Corporation tax recoverable 7 23 - -

Other receivables 266

________

26 309 5,458
Current

Trade receivables 19,707 20,033 445 105
Less provision for impairment (3.373) (2,386) - -

16,334 17,647 445 105
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 2,569 2,569
Less provision for impairment -. -

________

-. (2,569) (2,569)
Other receivables 9,763 10,249 10 19
Prepaymenis 22,691 33,710 - - -

48,788 61,606 455 124
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

17 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Movements in the provision br impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

us$’oOo uSs•000 us$’oOo us$’ooo
Movements in provision for impairment

At 1 January 2386 2240 2569 2.569
Provision for receivables impairment 1,900 1201 - -

Receivables written off in the year (850) (981) - -

Hyperinflation adjustments 617 757 - -

Exchange differences (680) (831) - -

At 31 December 3,373 2,386 2569 2569

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 90-day term. Due to their short maturities,
the fair value of trade receivables approximates to their book value.

Loans with related companies accrue interest at a LIBOR rate plus a spread of 8% per year.

As at the reporting date, there were no trade receivables past due but not impaired (2019: US$nil).

18 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

us$,000 uS$’ooo uss’OoO tJs$’ooo
Non-current
Trade payables 18,437 25,551 - -

Other taxation and social security 991 562
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1,737 1,053
Other payables 2462 1,448 2,462 1,448

21,890 27,561 4,199 — 2,501

Current
Trade payables 147,690 135,052 195 166
Other taxation and social security 14,142 13.709 - -

Government payables related to compensation
- 4 338funds

Other payables 610 1.926 238 1368
Accrued expenses 32,775 12,870 628 792

195,217 167,895 - 1,061 2,326

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 90-day term. Due to their short maturities,
the fair value of trade payables approximates to their book value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

18 Trade and other payables (Continued)

Settlement of CAMMESA ‘s historic debt
During 2018, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed a payment plan for CAMMESA’s historic debt incurred prior to January
2016, which included a reduction in late charges, a grace period from 1 February 2016 to April 2018, a financing term
of 90 months from April 2018 until September 2025 and a fixed annual interest rate of 10%. At 31 December 2020
EDEMSA owed CAMMESA USS 22.1 million (AR$ 1.9 billion) under this payment plan. The agreement is being fulfilled
and there were no unpaid instalments at the reporting date. No formal additional payment request has been received
as of the date of this report considering the overdue current debt with CAMMESA mentioned below.

Settlement of CAMMESA ‘s historic debt under Article 15
Notwithstanding the payment plan for CAMMESNs historic debt, noted above, on 21 December2016. Law 27.341 was
published (2017 National Budget). Article 15 of this law established the compensation terms for the historic debt which
Argentine electricity distributors have with CAMMESA in relation to the purchase of energy between 2013 and 2016 (a
time during which electricity tariffs were frozen). Under this law, a company should be able to net off the differences in
income received by the distributors compared with the income to with they were entitle to if the concession contract
had been applied (the Foregone Income) with regard to the amount payable to C&MMESA. On the basis that
EDEMSNs Foregone Income would be higher than the liability owed to CAMMESA, the application of the law should
result in a full discharge of the outstanding liability.

Although EOEMSA has agreed a payment plan with CAMMESA in respect of the 2013-2016 period, EDEMSA has not
relinquished its right to claim the Article 15 credit. Subsequently, the company has filed a claim with the National
Secretary of Energy to request the application of Article 15. No response has been received regarding this claim as of
the date of issuance of these financial statements.

Settlement of CAMMESA’S current debt
As at 31 December 2020 EDEMSA owed CAMMESA US$126.4 million (AR$ 10.6 billion) for energy purchases, of
which US$116 million (AR$ 9.7 billion) is due immediately. EDEMSA is currently in the process of negotiating a
payment plan with CAMMESA to ensure it is reflective of the tough econcrnc landscape in which EDEMSA operates.

While the negotiations are ongoing, the outstanding debt continues to be payable on demand. After a formal payment
request made by CAMMESA on January 2020, EDEMSA and CAMMESA agreed the suspension of procedural
deadlines while negotiations are ongoing under Law 27591, Article 87.

On 14 December 2020, Law 27591 was published (2021 National Budget) Article 87 of this law instructs the National
Secretary of Energy to regularize the debts and credits with distributors. The measures contemplate different
alternatives, that include the negotiation of a payment plan for up to 60 months with a 6-month grace period and a 50%
reduction in the interest rate. Likewise, the Ministry of Energy is empowered to dictate the applicable regulations and
deIem.ne, appy and recognize ir. the fiscal year 2021 the credit recognized by Article IS of the law 27,341 (the
Foregone Income). These measures were regulated by the Ministry of Energy in accordance with Resolution 40/2021
dated 21 January 2021. EDEMSA has presented the information requested.

Although to date the parties have not yet finalized the agreements underArticle 87, Law 27591, EDEMSA is negotiating
with the intention of signing them. To this end, EDEMSA has paid CAMMESA in full for all invoices relating to the
purchase of energy since March2021. If EDEMSA were able to finalize the agreements with CAMMESA, it would allow
EDEMSA to regularize the situation with its main supplier and stabilize its economic and financial situation, thereby
improving the financiat position of the Group and benefiting the going concern status making the Group to continue
operating as a going concern.
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19 Borrowings
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
uSs,000 uS$’Ooo us$,000 uS$’oOO

Non-current:
Other borrowings 2.880 8860 - 1,014

2,880 8,860 - 1,014
Current:
Bank borrowings 22 -

Other borrowings 2,893 7875 2,813 7,766
2,915 7,875 2,813 7,766
5,795 16,735 2,813 8,780

Movement in borrowings is analyzed as follows:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

uSS,000 us$’ooO IJSS’ooO uS$’ooo

At 1 January 10,736 8,780 8,367
Proceeds from borrowings 228 408 - -

Accrued interest 3,193 2,298 1,194 913
Income for refinancing agreement (1,822) - (1,822) -

Debt capitalization as per Settlement
- ‘5249 -Agreement on 30 December 2020 (1) (10,7013)

Repayments of borrowings
and interest (49) (1,651) (24) (500)
Reclassified from other
payable (2) - 4,993 -

Exchange difference (1,4) (49) (66)

________

At 31 December 5,795 16,735 2,813 8,780

(1) In November 2020, an agreement was signed for some debts of Andina and Andes Electricidad S.A. to convert the
outstanding debt, including interest, into equity shares of the company equivalent to uss 10.7 million. Below is the
capitalization of debts,

uS$,000
COMPANY

South America Energy Development LLC (SAED) 4,263
Stanhope Worldwide Services Inc 986

Subtotal 5,249
Andes Eleotricidad S.A.

Criss Cross tnt, Dcv. Inc 3.072
Generation Capital Investment 2.385

Subtotal 5,457

TOTAL 10,708

As ot December31. 2020 alt the outstanding debt to Stanhope Worldwide Services Inc. Criss Cross nt. 0ev. Inc and
Generation capital Investment hove been cancelled, there is a remainder of US $ 2,8 million for SAED.

t2) Relates to shareholders’ and directors loan previously included within current and non-current payables within trade and
other payablos.
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19 Borrowings (Continued)

The Groups and Companys other borrowings comprise of:

Group

US$1.7 million oan from Neil Sleasdale, a Director of the Company and a shareholder. The loan is unsecured
and bears 8% annual interest up to 31 December 2019 and 11% perannum thereafter The loan and accrued
interest are repayable on 31 December 2022. At 31 December 2020 the accrued interest amounted to
US$0.4 million.

AR$22.2 million (US$0.3 million) from Trench Energy Consulting SRL. The loan is unsecured and bears
annual interest at BADLAR + 5% up to 31 December 2019 and 8% per annum thereafter. The loan and
accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2022. At 31 December 2020 the accrued interest amounted
to AR$18.5 million (US$0.2 million).

Trench Energy Consulting S.R.L. (Trench”) provides a consulting service to EDEMSA. Trench develops
commercial activities and receives, among others, advisory services from Andes Electricidad S.A., an indirect
controlling Company of EDEMSA, as part of a development and expansion plan.

• AR$8.5 million (US$101) from DALAI SA. The loan is unsecured and bears annual interest o18% per annum
from 1 January 2020. The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2022. At 31 December
2020 the accrued interest amounted to AR$0.7 million (US$9).

• AR$12,6 million (US$0.2 million) from Magnus Argentina SA. The loan is unsecured and bears annual
interest at BADLAR + 4%, The loan and accrued interest are repayable on 31 December 2022. At 31
December 2020 the accrued interest amounted to AR$0.3 million (US$0.4 million).

Company

• US$7 million loan from South American Energy Development LLC (hereafter “SAED’), of which US$2.8
million remained outstanding at SI December 2020. The Loan is unsecured and bears 11% annual interest
payable monthly.

The loan has been presented in current other borrowings due to the agreement which was signed with
SAED with the possibility to convert the entire outstanding debt of US$ 2,8 million including interest, into
equity shares of the HDS Company that represent 40% of the capital and voting rights of HDS (see note
32).
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20 Leases

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

us$00o usv000 us$,000 us$’Ooo
Right of use assets
AtlJanuary 1,224 - - -

Addilions in the year - 1809 - -

Amortization (48) (49) - -

Hyperinflation adjustmants 331 - - -

Exchange adiustrnents (337) (536)
At 31 December 1170 1224

Lease liability
All January 1418 827 - -

New leases obtained - 1,407 - -

Repayments of leases (435) (816)
At31 December 983 1,418

Of which are:
Non-currenl 688 1,051 - -

Current 295 367
983 1,418

21 Provisions
Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
u8$,000 uSs’ooO Us$’Ooo us$,000

Fines 8,431 6,119 -

Legal claims 634 601 -

9,065 6,720 -

Non-current 266 402 -

Currenl 8,799 6,318
9,065 6,720

- -
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21 Provisions (Continued)

Movements in provisions:

Group Fines Total

US$t000 US$’OOO us$’OOO

At 1 January 2020 6,119 601 6,720
Additional provisions in the year 4751 439 5190
Used/paid during the year (2277) (390) (2667)
Exchange difference (1743) (171) (1914)
Hyperinflation adjustment 1581 155 1,736
At 31 December 2020 8,431 634 9,065

Legal
Group Fines claims Total

US$,000 US$’000 Us$’ooo

At 1 January 2019 11,685 817 12,502
Additional provisions in the year 5,865 712 6,577
Used/paid during the year (11,050) (902) (11,952)
Exchange difference (4337) (303) (4,640)
Hyperinflation adjustment 3,956 277 4,233
At31 December2019 6,119 601 6,720

Fines
EDEMSA’s activities are regulated by the provincial regulator, Ente Provincial Regulador Eléctrico (EPRE). EPRE
regulates the approval and control of tariffs, the control of the quality of the technical product and service, and
the commercial quality, Failure to comply with the provisions established in the concession contract and in the
applicable regulations may result in penalties being imposed. The Group has appealed the penalties. As of the
reporling date, no response to the appeal has been received and the Group has provided US$2.97 million (2019:
US$2.1 million) for possible penalties, and US$5.46 million (2019: US$ 4.0 million) to cover the risks associated
with possible fines.

Legal claims
This represent provisions for certain claims relating to penalties in connection with legal procedures related to
the ordinary course of business, which are expected to crystallize under varied terms after the reporting dale.

In management’s opinion, after receiving appropriate legal advice, the outcome of these claims is unlikely to
result in a significant loss in excess of the amounts provided.
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22 Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognized by the Group and Company, and
movements thereon:

Liabilities Liabilities
Group 2020 2019

us$,000 us$’ooO

Provision for bad debt 709 436
Notional income tax 1,364 1,931
Provision charges 6,426 (68)
Employee benefits 1,137 1,153
Carry forward losses 8,689 9,156
Other (10,662) (6,178)
Non-current assets (41,066) (39,545)
Borrowings Q

(33,383) JPL.

The Company has no deferred lax assets or liabilities.

—
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22 Deferred taxation (Continued)

Movements in deferred tax liabilities

Provision Notional Provision employee Carry Other Total
for bad income forward

debt tax
c arges ene its losses

us$,000 u8$’ooo us$•000 us$•000 us$’OoO us$,000 us$’oOo
At 1 January 2019 422 3.185 (2,143) 1,424 5,398 128 8,414
Credit!(charge) to the
profit or loss 28 (370) 2.005 (230) 3,934 (1362) 4005
Credit to employee
Benefils - - - 5 - - 5
Minimal notional tax
paid - (1.070) - - - - (1070)
Hyperinflation effect 227 1714 (1,153) 767 2,906 69 4,530
Exchangedilferences (241) (1,526) 1,223 (813) (3,082) (73) (4,514)
At 31 December 2019 436 1,931 (68) 1.153 9.156 (1,238) 11,370
Creditl(charge) to the

284 (416) 6,493 51 (228) 397 6,583profit or loss
Charge to employee - -

- ‘36 - - 36benefits
Minimal nolional tax

- (194) - - - (194)

Hyperinflation effect 158 688 (25) 417 3.309 (447) 4,100
Exchange differences (169) (645) 26 (448) —- (3.55 — 480 (°I
At 31 December 2020 709 1,364 6,426 — - 1,137 8,689 - (808) 17,517
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22 Deferred taxation (Continued)

Movements in deferred net tax liabilities
Non-currentBorrowings

assets
Other Total

uss’ooo uss’ooo US$ 000 ussooo
At 1 January 2019 135 (36583) - (36,448)
(Charge) to loss (71) (4015) (6,940) (11026)
Hyperinflation effect 73 (20,374) - (20,301)
Exchange differences (77)

— 21,427 - 21,350
At 31 December 2019 60 (39,545) (6,940) (46,425)
(Charge) to toss (39) (1985) (3,184) (5,208)
Hyperinflation effect 22 (14,297) (2,385) (16,660)
Exchange differences (23) 14761 2,655 17,393
At 31 December 2020 20 (41066) (9,854) (50,900)
Net deferred income tax liability
At 31 December 2020 —- (33,383)
At31 December2019 (5)

In addition to the net deferred income tax liability of US$33 million (2019: US$35 million), the Group has recognized
a non-offsetting deferred income tax asset of USSnil (2019: US$ nil).

Minimum notional income tax was payable in Argentina and is supplementary to income tax. The Group determined
the amount of minimum notional income tax due at the applicable tax rate and its tax liability was the higher of the
minimum notional tax and the income tax due, However, if the minimum notional income tax for a given year
exceeded the amount of income tax, such excess may be carried forward against future income tax liabilities for a
maximum of ten years. In 2019 the application of the minimum notional income tax was repeated for the years
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The minimum notional income tax is included as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the minimum notional income tax can be utilized. However, the credit of USD
1,382 at the year end, is estimated to be used as a partial payment of corporation tax in the next fiscal year.

In the Group, losses in respect of which deferred tax assets have been recognized will expire between 2021 and
2025.

In June 2021 there was a reform of the income tax rates, see the impact on the deferred tax in note 32.
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23 Employee benefits schemes

Long term benefits for years of sentice
This represents tile accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement for
the industry labour union, that have completed twenty, twenty five, thirty, and thirty five years of service. This is
paid in the form of a special remuneration equivalent to the monthly salary in the month that the year of service
conditions are met. This amount doubles when the employee reaches forty years of service.

Long term benefits for retirement or disability
The Group operates a defined benefit plan This represents accrued benefits to be paid to employees covered
by the collective bargaining agreement for the industry labor union, for staff reachng retiring age or retiring as a
result of disability prior to this. All such employees who have at least five years of service with the Group are
entitled to this benefit. Employees are paid a bonus equivalent to ten months of their last monthly salary. This
benefit is increased by two percent for each year of service exceeding the first five years.

These benefits are valued according to the actuarial method of the projected unit credit. The Group estimates
the future outcome of certain variables that affect the value of the liability, including the rate of inflation, salary
increases and changes in mortality rates. The amounts calculated are discounted using a d;scount rate that
reflects the time value of money and the specific risks to the cash flows considered. The differences between the
prior year estimates and the actual charge and changes in estimates are classified as gains and losses with in
administrative expenses.

The main assumptions used in the calculation are the discount rate and the expected salary increase. The actual
rate used to discount the obligations of these benefits was determined by reference to the market yield (at the
reporting date) of the National Government’s bonds. The salary increase rate responds to the historical evolution
of it.

2020 2019
Key assumptions

Discount rate 15.5 15.5
Expected rate of salary increases 9

2020 2019
Amounts recognized in the income statement US$000 US$000

Current service cost 586 783
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 513 — 660
Total costs 1,099 1443

2020 2019
Amounts taken to ether comprehensive income US$000 US$000

Actuarial changes related to obligations 344 873
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23 Employee benefits schemes (Continued)

The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising from obligations in respect of defined benefit
plans are as follows:

2020 2019
Group US$000 US$000

Present value of defined benefit obligations 4550 4,612
Deficit in scheme - 4550 4.612

The Company had no post-employment benefits at 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019

Group Group
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations 2020 2019

US$000 US$000

Liabilities at 1 January 4,612 5,955
Current service cost 586 783
Benefits paid (1,383) (2,805)
Actuarial gains and tosses 344 673
Interest cost 513 660
Other (122) j654)
At 31 December 4,550 4.612

There are no plan assets and therefore the liability presented is the gross defined benefit liability.

Tne sensitivity of the defined benefit liability outstanding at 31 December 2020 to changes in the main actuarial
assumptions is as follows:

• Increase! decrease of 1% in discount rate will result in a decrease of USS31 0,000Ian increase of US$364,000
in the liability respectively;

• Increase! decrease of 1% in rate of salary increases will result in an increase of U8S374,000 I a decrease of
USS324000 in the liability respectively.
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24 Warrants

The Company issued warrants to subscrioe for its ordinaiy shares. All outstanding warrants expired during the
year and at the reporting date there were no outstanding warrants as shown below:

company Number of share options Weighted average exercise
price

2020 2019 2020 2019
Number Number US$000 US$000

Outstanding at 1 January
- 2158,120

- 054
Expired

- (2j8.l20) —

_______

Outstanding at 31 December
- 0,54

Exercisable at 31 Decenber
- -

- 0.54

Company

The fair values of warrants, which fall under the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based payments”, were calculated using
the Black-Scholes model. The estimated fair values of warrants and the inputs used in the model to calculate
those fair values are as follows:

June 2012

Weighted average share price (f) 0.45
Weighted average exercise price (E) 0.54
Expected volatility (%) 53.00
Expected life (years) 7.00
Risk free rate (%)
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24 Warrants (Continued)

The share price is the predemerger share price of Andes and the volatility was derived from the pre-demerger
Andes share activity.

25 Share capital and reserves
-

Group and Company
2020 2019

Ordinary share capital US$000 US$000
Issued and fully paid
96156,114 (2019: 98156114) ordinary shares of lop each 14,904 14,904
44853,670 (2019: nil) ordinary shares having a nominal value of 1 Op per

5948share
Total share capital 20,852 14,904 -

44,853,670 (2019: nil) share premium of Bp per share 4,758 — -

Total share premium 4,758 14,904

Preference share capital
Issued and fully paid
50,000 (2019: 50,000) redeemable preference shares of LI each 78 78
Preference shares classified as liabilities 78 78

Reserves

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arose following the completion of the demerger of Andes PLC on 11 July 2012.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve results from exchange differences arising from the translation of the assets and liabiliUes
of the Group’s operations into the presentation currency at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date, and
income and expense items at the average exchange rates for the reporting year.

Retained earnings/(deficit)
The retained earningsl(deficit) include all Dther net gains and losses and transactions with owners (e.g. dividends)
not recognized elsewhere.
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26 FinancIal instruments

The Group is exposed through its operations to the lollowing financial risks: market risk. foreign currency risk,interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and capital risk. Management seek to minimize the Groups
exposure to those risks by reviewing and agreeing policies for managing each financial risk and monitoring them
on a regular bass. No formal policies have been put in place in order to hedge the Group’s activities to the
exposure to interest rate risk, price risk or foreign currency risk, however they may be considered in the future.
No derivatives or hedges against these risks were used during the year.

There have been no substantive changes in the Group’s exposure to financial risks, policies, management ormeasurement of them unless otherwise stated in this note.

Principal financial instruments
The Group’s principal financial instruments, from which financial instrument risks arises, comprise cash and cashequivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

The table below shows the carrying values of the Group’s financial assets and financiat liabilities.

Group Company

2020 2019 2020 2019
us$!000 us$000 us$’OoO us$.000

Carrying amount of financial assets
Trade and other receivable 35,768 48,876 455 124
Cash and cash equivalents 10,229 7.851 18 19
Listed investment 54,918 42,336 - -

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amortized cost 206,290 199,338 5,611 12,554

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficuity in meeting obligations associated with financialiiabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity risk is monitored by the Group to ensure that it has sufficient rescurces to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The liquidity risk of the Group is managed by the Board who monitor the Group’s liquidityrequirements through monthly management accounts and periodic cash flow forecasts. New funds are borrowedwhen required. The Group intends to maintain a balance of funding designed to reduce liquidity risks whilst alsoseeking to minimize the costs of borrowings. Where appropriate the Board wilt seek additional funds from theissue of share capital, private or public placements.

The table below shows the Group and Company’s financial liabilities at the reporting date by their remainingcontractual maturity. The amounts disclosed in the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash flowswhich may differ from the amounts included in the statement of financial position because the balances presentedin the statement of financial position are based on discounted cash flows.

- -
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26 Financial instruments (Continued)

Group Carrying Contractual 1 year Ito 5 Over 52020 amount cash flows or less years years
us$0OO us$’ooo us$’ooo us$’Ooo us$’OOO

Current financial liabilities:
I rade and other payables 181,075 181,075 181,075

-

loansandborrowings 2915 102 102 - -

Leases 295 297 297 -

Nan-current financial liabilities:
Tmde and other payables 18437 34,650 4195 30,455

-

Loans and borrowings 2,880 3,697 - 3,897 -

Leases 688 969 190 779
206.290 220,790 18859 34931

Company Carrying Contractual 1 year I to 5 Over 52020 amount cash flows or less years years
uS$,000 us$’oOo lJs$’oOo us$’oOo us$’OoO

Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 1,061 1,061 1,061 - -

Loans and borrowings 2,813 - - - -

Non-current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 1,737 1,737 . 1,737 -

Loans and borrowings
- -- -

5,611 2,798 1,061 1,737

Group Carrying Contractual 1 year Ito 5 Over S2019 amount cash flows or less years years
US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 LIS$’OOO

Current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 153,244 153,244 153,244 - -

Loans and borrowings 8,885 8,968 8,968 - -

Leases 367 382 382 - -

Non-current financial Ha biities:
Trade and other payables 27,941 36,090

- 31,694 4,396
Loans and borrowings 7,850 9,251 - 9,251 -Leases 1,051 1,274 - 1,274 — -

199,338 — 209209 162,594 42,219 4,396

- 87 -
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26 Financial instruments (Continued)

Company Carrying Contractual 1 year I to 5 Over 52019 amount cash flows or less years years
us$,000 uss’OoO us$’Ooo IJSS’ooO tJs$’oooCurrent financial liabilities:

Trade and other payab)es 1,384 1,384 1,384 -

Loans and borrowings 8,780 10119 10,119 -Non-current financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 2,390 2.390

- 2,390Loans and borrowings
-

- - -

12554 13,893 11,503 2,390
Credit risk
in accordance with the local legislation, the Group is not able to subject its customer portfolio to a regular
credit risk assessment and is therefore exposed to credit risk due to the possibility that customers may fail tomeet their financial obligations. The Group has the right to disconnect services if customers fail to meet theirfinancial obligations,

The Group is also subject to counterparty credit risk attributable to its deposits of cash and cash equivalents.The risk is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by internationalcredit-rating agencies.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposureto credit risk at the reporting date was:

2020 2019
Group Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum

value exposure value exposure
uS$,000 tJss’oOO us$,000 us$’oooCurrent financial assets:

Trade and other receivables 35,768 35,768 48,876 48,876Investments 54,918 54,918 42,336 42,336Cash and cash equivalents
- 10,229 10,229 7,851 7,851

100,915 100,915 99M63 99063

2020 2019
Company Carrying Maximum Carrying Maximum

value exposure value exposure
us$,000 us$’oOo uss’Ooo uss’oOoCurrent financial assets:

Trade and other receivables 455 455 124 124Cash and cash equivalents 18 —— 18 19

______

19
473 473 143 143

-
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26 Financial instruments (Continued)

Market risk
The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in (a) foreign currencies
and (b) interest bearing liabilities and commodity risks, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements. Management does not limit the value of risks that may be accepted. However, management is on
alert for significant market movements and takes these movements into account in their future dealings.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the farr value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates, If variable interest rates increase by 1% compared to the current rate this
would result in a US$0.5 million additional charge to the income statement. The Group’s exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk comes from variable interest rates on borrowings.

The Group does not have formal poticies and procedures for the management of interest rate risks as
management considers this risk insignificant to the Groups business,

Price risk
The Group is not subject to price risk due to tariffs not being open market based but regulated. However, if future
tariff reviews are not forthcoming, this will adversely affect cash flows and the ability of the Group to invest in the
business and could impair Group asset values. The Group has not used any derivative hedges against this risk.
In connection with electricity sales, the Group is not exposed to risks due to fluctuations in the prices paid to
purchase etectricity on the market, since price fluctuations are passed through to customers.

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to the purchase of the copper wires used in the
distribution networks. The Group does not use derivatives to hedge this risk. The Group is also exposed to price
risk due to inflationary increases in the price of the goods and services it purchases. To manage its exposure to
this risk, the Group has established commercial practices aimed at selecting the most convenient suppliers which
ensure minimizing the costs of purchasing inputs vithout resigning their quality.

Foreign currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risks on certarn bank deposits, debtors and creditors denominated in
a different currency from their functional currency.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk mainly relates to balances in USS, based on carrying amounts at
the reporting date as follows:

2020 2019
US$000 US$000

Trade and other receivables 874 2,283
Investment 50,137 32,139
Cash and cash equivalents 759 2.552
Financial liabilities (6.1 S2) (20,234)

45,588 16,740

- sq -
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26 Financial instruments

(Continued)
Effect on profit of changes in exchange rates

2020 2019
us$,000 us$’OOo

Functional currency strengthening by 25% 11,397 3,765
Functional currency weakening by 25% (11.397) - (3,765)

Capital risk
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
to maintain sufficient financial flexibility in order to undertake investment plans, and to optimize the weighted
average cost of capital and tax efficiency.

To maintain or adjust the optimum capital structure, the Group may look for new debt facilities, issue new share
capital for cash, repay or restructure existing debt, amend its dividend policy, or undertake other restructuring
activities considered appropriate.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of [he net debt ratio as follows:

Group
2020 2019

uss,000 us$,000
Borrowings excluding leases 5,773 16,735
Less: cash and cash equivalents (10,229) (7,851)
Net debt (4,434) 8,884

Total equity 56,504 69,135

Equity and net debt 52,070 — 76019
Net debt ratio 9% 11%

- 7n -
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27 Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

US$000 US$000 US$’OOO US$000
Acquisition of properly, planl and equipment 8,744 9,392

All amounts are categorized as less than one year.

28 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management include directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management who have authority
for planning, directing and controlling the Group. The compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

US$000 USS’OOO US$000 US$000

Salaries and other short-term benefits -- 452 362 - -

452 362 - -

Year end balances with related parties
Amounts outstanding at the reporting date owed by the Company to related parties are slated below:

Group Company
2020 2019 2020 2019

US$000 US$000 US$’OOO US$000
Key management personnel 2.094 1,943 - -

2.094 1943 - -

Amounts owed to key management personnel are due to one of the Company’s directors, Neil Bleasdale and his
related company.

No other transactions occurred with related parties during the current and preceding years.

—71 -
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29 Contingent liabilities

EDEMSA has received a claim from the Argentine fiscal bureau in respect of a different interpretation of the tax
assessed in certain years. On 25 june 2007. the Group received notice from the authorities of their intention to
pursue the claim plus interest and penalties. In the opinion of EDEMSA’s tax advisors, the criteria used by the
Argentine tiscal bureau is not in line with tax regulations. For this reason, the Group has not made any provision
for this claim. On 19 July 2007 EDEMSA filed appeals with the National Tax Court. The Group does consider that
an estimate of the debt with respect to such claims can be estimated with certainty. The matter remains
outstanding as at year end, and the Company’s position remains the same based on recent tax advice.

30 Cash generated from Group operations

Loss for the year after tax
Adjustments for:
Tax (credit)/charge
Finance costs
Finance income
Hyperinilation impact
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
lncrease)(Decrease) in provisions
Movements in working capital:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other payabes
Increase in trade and other receivables
Cash generated from operations

31 Cash generated from operations - Company

2020 2019
us$.000 us$’OOO

(20,946) (20.575)

(872) 7,701
44,127 48,733
(7,299) (13,544)

(29,086) (34,830)
318 252

9,253 9,669
6,258 (6,046)

(4,253) (4,878)
45424 71,609
(6,852) (4,1,571)
35,772 16,520

2020 2019
tJs$,000 us$’ooo

Gain/(Loss) for the year after tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Finance income
Movements in working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations

1,086
(1,817)

(279)
433

23

620 (1,826)

913

(24)
1,330

393

- 72 -
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32 Subsequent events

Transfer of shares

On 25 February, 2021 the agreement with South American Energy Development LLC (SAED) that converted theborrowing at 31 December 2020 for USD 2798088 was completed. The coversion was structured via paymentin kind, by assigning and transferring to SAED shares in Hidroeléctrica Del Sur (HDS) representing 40% of thecapital and voting rights of HDS.
Under IFRS. the reclassification of assets (and any associated liabilities) as held for distribution can only be
triggered once the assets are availabte for distribution in their present condition and the distribution is highly
probable. The highly probable criteria is met when the distribution is expected to be completed within a year.
The “highly probable criteria was not met as of 31 December, 2020 since both Andina and SAED were in theprocess of negotiation and to complete the agreement with SAED, the approval transfer of share capital by the
shareholders had to be effective. Therefore, the assets and liabilities associated with our HDS business are not
classified as held for distribution as of 31 December, 2020

New investment

As detailed in Note 3 Andina Plc has a 23.4% direct interest in South American Energy LLP and a 23.4% indirect
interest in Energia del Cono Sur S.A. (EDELCOS — 100% controlled by SAE).

On December 28. 2020, EDELCOS entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “SPK) with Argentine
company Pampa Energia S.A., for the transfer and assignment by the tatter to EDELCOS of 51% of the capital
stock and voting power in Argentine tisted company Empresa Distribuidora y Comercializadora None 5k(EDENOR). This transaction was subject to certa[n precedent conditions including, among others, the approval
of the relevant transfer and assignment by ENRE. the Argentine enforcement agency, which is responsible forthe regulation of the distribution of electricity.

The SPA contemplated a total price of USD 100,000,000 to be paid as follows; (i) a down-payment in the amount
oIUSD 5,000,000 plus a 21.876.856 of class 8 shares, thatwere acquired from Pampa Energia S.A. in November
2Q20 at a cost of USD 5,000,000, and then transferred and assigned back to Pampa Energia S.A. at the time ofexecution of the SPA; (h) USD 50,000,000 to be paid upon the Closing Date; and (it) USD 40,000,000 to be paid
upon one year from the Closing date, and bearing a 10% interest to be paid quarterly as from the Closing Dateof the SPA

On June 23, 2021, by Resolution No. 20712021, ENRE authorized Pampa Energia S.A. to transfer ali the Class
A shares, representing 51% of the Company’s share capital and votes, to EDELCOS, in accordance with the
SPA. The SPA was closed on June 30, 2021 (the “Closing Date”), and the transfer and assignment of the 51%controlling stake in EDENOR to EDELCOS occurred on that date.

The down-payment of USD 5,000,000 plus the amount of class B shares acquired from Pampa Energia S.A., toenter the SPA, was funded by José Luis Manzano, a shareholder, on behalf of the wider group of shareholders.The second instalment of USO 50,000000 was paid on June 30,2021 by the shareholders.

- 7 -
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32 Subsequent events (Continued)

Now investment

Andina’s funding obligation, in respect of the purchase of EDENOR, is 234% of the full transaction price, which
reflects its 23.4% interest in SAE. Andina’s participation was funded with:

I) certain capital contributions detailed in Note 32 and

It) two loans from Crosgo Trading Ltd and José Luis Manzano. Both loans are due in January 2024 and December
2023 respectively.

As of the date of these financial statements, the pending payment for the acquisition of EDENOR is USD 40000000
to be paid in June 2022. If the Company does not have enough funds to pay and no other financing alternatives areavatlabte, there are other payment guarantees such as a promissory note signed by Andina and seven other co
obligors, as well as certain pledge cottaterat of shares of EDELCOS. Finally, the guarantee for the payment woutd bethe investment itself.

EDENOR is the targest electricity distribution company in Argentina in terms of number of customers and electricitysold. The company hotds a concession to distribute electricity exclusively in the Northwestern greater Buenos Airesmetropolitan area and the Northern part of the city of Buenos Aires, which has a poputation of approximately 9million people and an area of 4,637 sq. km.

EDENOR is listed on the Buenos Aires Stock Exchange (BCBA: EDN) and its ADS (American Depositary Shares)
shares (each ADS representing 20 Class •‘B shares) are listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: EDN)
since 2007.
As of the date of this accounts, Andina Plc holds 11.9% indirect interest in EDENOR.

Issue of shares

The company issued shares as detailed below:

- On 31 March 2021, the Group issued and allotted to Ema Etectromechanichs Inc 3,2243B0 new ordinaryshares with a nominal value of lop each and share premium of 8p per share.
- On 19 August 2021, the Group issued and allotted 22810,652 new ordinary shares with a nominal value of

lop each and share premium of Bp per share, as follows:
- 8,051,529 ordinary shares to Almada International Limited,
- 5,995,204 ordinary shares to Magnus Capital S,A.,
- 4,131,472 ordinary shares to Stanhope Worldwide Services Inc.,
- 3,816,228 ordinary shares to Mezzo Trading International Inc.,
- 791.910 ordinary shares to Criss Cross International Development Inc.,
- 19,262 ordinary shares to J M Finn Nominees Limited, and
- 5,047 ordinary shares to Jim Nominees Limited.

- 74 -
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32 Subsequent events (Continued)

CQVID-19

During this year, the company conlinued to develop its operations under the challenging circumstances due tothe pandemic declared by the World Health Organization in March 2020, as a result of lhe Covid-19 virus. Thepandemic continues generating, to a lesser extent than in the previous year, consequences on business andeconomic activities at global and local levels.

CAMMESA

On December 14, 2020, i_ow 27,591 was published (2021 National Budget). Article 87 of this law instructs theNational Secretary of Energy to regularize the debts and credits with distributors. The measures contemplatedifferent alternatives that include the negotiation of a payment plan for up to 80 months with a 6month graceperiod and a 50% reduction in the interest rate. Likewise, the Ministry of Energy is empowered to dictate theapplicable regulations and determine, apply and recognize in the fiscal year 2021 the credit recognized by Article15 (Law 27,341). These measures were regulated by the Ministry of Energy in accordance to Resolution 40/2021dated January 21. 2021. EDEMSA has presented the information requested. However, the agreement has notyet been finalized.

Tax reform in Argentina

Since 2021, a staggered income tax scheme is applied to which different rates are applied, which are from 25% to35% depending on the accumulated net tax profit.

These amounts will be adjusted annually as of January 1, 2022, considering the annual variation of the ConsumerPrice Indices (CPI) provided by the National lnstLtute of Statistics and Censuses (INDEC).

The estimated impact of this change, which will be recognized as of the next fiscal year, will generate an impacton the financial statement of net deferred liabilities of USS 13,353(loss), considering the effective rate that isestimated to be applicable to the probable date of reversal of deferred assets and liabilities.

Economic context
Between 1 January 2021 and 24 March 2022, the argentine peso depreciated by 31% compared with the USdollar.

To the best of the knowledge and understanding of management and directors, since 31 December 2020, therehave been no other significant subsequent events not described in this Annual Report that could affect thefinancial statements presented for 2020.
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